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We are pleased
to provide you

with the 2008 Annual Report
of Georgia

ar0lI Bancsh5 Inc

The year
2008 was allengmg year

for our
national economy and your

Company
Considering

the turmoil in the econOmy
and the financial markets

we believe
that your

company performed
quite

well

Consolidated
net income

for the year
totaled

$2800000
which was down slightlY

from

$2901000
in 2007 We felt

that this result was very
favorable

0sidering the negate impact
of the

residential
housing

market
and the overall decline in economic

conditions

Total
consolidated

yearend
assets of the company grew

from $447869000
at the end of 2007

to 460 828000.The
company

continues
to remainweO

capitalized by regulatory
standards

and all of

our capital ratios
increased

during
the year

Book value per
share increased

6.9% during
the year

from

$l0.58t0$h13

Credit quality
remains primary

focus
argeoff5 increased

during the year
but totaled only

0.67% of average
loans We believe

that our sound
underwriting

standards
and the relative

5trength
of

our local markets
have helped us weather

the current
economic

conditions
better than many of our

peers

2009 is milestone year
for our ompafly

in many ways.Thi5 year
marked the 20th flniversary

of the opening
of the Hill

Street Office
formerly known as McDuffie

Bank Trust our predecessor
During

March we celebrated
the 10th year

Anniversary
of our entry

into the Augusta
market

with the opening

of our Daniel Village
Office Furthermore

October
2009 will mark the 10th Anniversary

of our entry into

Columbia
County

with the opening
of our WestTown

Office

Therefore
we look to 2009 as year

of allenge but also of celebration
as we continue

to build upon
the investment you

have made in 0gia aro1na
Bancshares

Inc and First
Bank of

Georgia

We extend to you
special

invitation
to attend the Annual eeting of our Shareholders

tO

be held at 400 p.m on May 18 2009 at the Main Office and Corporate
dqu ters located at 3527

Wheeler
Road

Thank you
for your

interest
and support

of your
company

and your
Bank

ncerely

Remer Brinson
Ill

president
Chief Executive

Officer

eotgia 30909 Phone 706 731.6600

3527 Wheeler
Road Augusta

Augusta
Georgia

30919h148

post OfflC0x 15148
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GEORGIA-CAROLINA BANCSHARES AND FIRST BANK OF GEORGA

January 1989 McDuffie Bank Trust opens its doors

1997 Georgia Carolina Bancshares founded

GE9GIA GARJJNA
Jite

1998 McDuffie Bank

to First Bank of Georgia
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

The Companys common stock trades on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol GECR The market for the

Companys common stock must be characterized as limited market due to its relatively low trading volume and lack of analyst

coverage The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the quarterly high and low bid quotations per share as reported

by the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board These quotations also reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-ups mark-downs
or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions The share prices below reflect all stock splits

High Low

Fiscal year ended December 31 2008

First Quarter $1 1.00 $9.05

Second Quarter $11.50 $9.00

Third Quarter $12.35 $9.00

Fourth Quarter $12.35 $7.00

Fiscal year ended December 31 2007

FirstQuarter $14.10 $12.90

Second Quarter $14.00 $12.90

Third Quarter $13.50 $13.00

Fourth Quarter $13.20 $10.90

Holders of Common Stock

As of March 272009 the number of holders of record of the Companys common stock was approximately 586

Dividends

No cash dividends were paid by the Company during the years ended December 31 2008 or 2007

Future dividends will be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in light of circumstances existing from time to

time including the Companys growth financial condition and results of operations the continued existence of the restrictions

described below on the Banks ability to pay dividends and other factors that the Board of Directors of the Company considers

relevant in addition the Board of Directors of the Company may determine from time to time that it is prudent to pay special

nonrecurring cash dividends in addition to or in lieu of regular cash dMdends Such special dividends will depend upon the

financial performance of the Company and will take into account its capital position No special dividend is presently contem

plated

Because the Companys principal operations are conducted through the Bank the Company generates cash to pay dividends

primarily through dividends paid to it by the Bank Accordingly any dividends paid by the Company will depend on the Banks

earnings capital requirements financial condition and other factors Under Georgia law the Bank may pay dividends only when

and if the Bank is not insolvent In addition dividends may not be declared or paid at any time when the Bank does not have

combined paid-in capital and appropriated retained earnings equal to at least 20% of the Banks capital stock Moreover divi

dends may not be paid by the Bank without the prior approval of the Georgia Banking Department if the dividends are in excess

of specified amounts fixed by the Georgia Banking Department
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The Company currently has three equity compensation plans the 1997 Stock Option Plan which was approved by sharehold

ers ii the 2004 Incentive Plan which was approved by shareholders and iii the Director Stock Purchase Plan which has not

been approved by shareholders The following table provides information as of December 31 2008 regarding the Companys

then existing compensation plans and arrangements

Number of securities remaining
Number of securities to be

weighted-average exercise available for future issuance
issued upon exercise of

price of outstanding options
under

equity compensation
outstan ing options

warrants and rights
plans excluding securities

warrants and rights
reflected in column

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders

1997 Stock Option Plan 220555 7.93

2004 Incentive Plan 66320 $13.32 262805

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders N/A N/A 70434

Total 286875 $9.18 333239

Director Stock Purchase Plan

The Director Stock Purchase Plan provides that non-employee directors of the Company and the Bank may elect to purchase

shares of the Companys common stock in lieu of receiving cash for director fees earned in each calendar quarter The purchase

price for shares acquired under the plan is $2.00 less than the closing market price of the Companys common stock as reported

on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board on the last day of each calendar quarter non-employee director may join the plan at

any time during the last seven days of each calendar quarter
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Our selected consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the
years ended December 31 2004 through 2008 is

derived from our audited consolidated financial statements Our audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31
2008 and 2007 and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 312008 are included elsewhere in this report

All years have been restated as necessary for stock dividends and stock splits

At and for the Years Ended December31

in thousands except per share data

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Selected Balance Sheet Data

Assets 460828 447869 417471 349481 332393

Investment securities 59795 60393 55404 39362 43375
Loans held for investment 336293 322201 280883 248311 216728
Loans held for sale 28402 39547 56758 40064 56729
Allowance for loan losses 4284 5059 4386 3756 3416

Deposits 377009 379966 341342 304440 257780

Short-term borrowings 15859 17473 38661 13442 47087
Long-term debt 25400 10500 600 700 800

Other liabilities 3476 3959 4742 2290 1358

Shareholdersequity 39084 35971 32126 28609 25368

Selected Results of Operations Data

Interest income 26371 29019 25335 20876 16088

Interest expense 13038 15706 11969 8420 4468
Net interest income 13333 13313 13366 12456 11620

Provision for loan losses 1456 909 898 1022 808

Net interest income after provision

for loan losses 11877 12404 12468 11434 10812

Non-interest income 9920 9932 9800 10331 10571

Non-interest expense 17745 17816 17911 16368 15714

Income before taxes 4052 4520 4357 5397 5669
Incometaxexpense 1252 1619 1460 1942 2167
Net income 2800 2901 2897 3455 3502

Per Share Data

Net income basic 0.82 0.85 0.86 $1.04 $1.06

Net income diuted 0.80 0.83 0.83 0.98 0.99

Bookvalue $11.31 $10.58 $9.51 $8.53 $7.65

Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Basic 3426860 3393224 3370277 3336834 3305534
Diluted 3503856 3508606 3489564 3524294 3521876
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At and for the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Performance Ratios

Return on average assets 0.62% 0.69% 0.78% 1.00% 1.19%

Return on average equity 7.36% 8.39% 9.57% 12.80% 14.86%

Netinterestmargin1 3.15% 3.36% 3.81% 3.78% 4.14%

Efficiency ratio 76.31% 76.64% 77.39% 71.45% 70.81%

Loan to deposit ratio 96.73% 95.21% 98.92% 94.72% 106.08%

Asset Quality Ratios

Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.39% 3.20% 0.68% 0.59% 0.61%

Nonperforming assets to total assets 2.66% 2.69% 0.69% 0.61% 0.63%

Net charge-offs to average total loans 0.67% 0.08% 0.09% 0.24% 0.23%

Allowance for loan losses to

nonperforming loans 84.65% 43.77% 191 .86% 219.91% 205.29%

Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.17% 1.40% 1.30% 1.30% 1.25%

Capital Ratios

Average equity to average assets 8.41% 8.16% 8.11% 7.80% 7.99%

Leverage ratio 8.59% 8.18% 7.85% 8.14% 7.98%

Tier risk-based capital ratio 9.82% 9.39% 9.25% 9.91% 9.11%

Total risk-based capital ratio 10.91% 10.72% 10.50% 11.16% 10.34%

Growth Ratios and Other Data

Percentage change in net income 3.5% 0.1% 16.2% 1.3% 30.4%

Percentage change in diluted net

income per share 3.6% 0.0% 15.3% 1.0% 29.8%

Percentage change in assets 2.9% 7.3% 19.5% 5.1% 24.9%

Percentage change in loans 0.8% 7.1% 17.1% 5.5% 31.0%

Percentage change in deposits 0.8% 11.3% 12.1% 18.1% 16.3%

Percentage change in equity 8.7% 12.0% 12.3% 12.8% 16.0%

Non-tax equivalent

Computed by dividing non-interest expense by the sum of

net interest income and non-interest income excluding gains

and losses on the sale of assets
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides information about the major components of the results of operations and financial condition

liquidityand capital resourcesofthe Companyand Bankand should be read in conjunction withtheCompanysfinancial statements

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 0-K contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 which represent the expectations or beliefs of our management including but not lim

ited to statements concerning the banking industry and the issuers operations performance financial condition and growth

For this purpose any statements contained in this Report that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed forward-

looking statements Without limiting the generality of the foregoing words such as may7will7expect7believe7anticipate7

intend7could7should7can7estimateorcontinue or the negative or other variations thereof or comparable terminology are

intended to identify forward-looking statements These statements by their nature involve substantial risks and uncertainties

certain of which are beyond our control and actual results may differ materially depending on variety of important factors in

cluding competition general economic and market conditions changes in interest rates changes in the value of real estate and

other collateral securing loans interest rate sensitivity and exposure to regulatory and legislative changes and other risks and

uncertainties described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission Although we believe that the assumptions

underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable any of the assumptions could prove to be inaccurate Therefore we

can give no assurance that the results contemplated in the forward-looking statements will be realized The inclusion of this

forward-looking information should not be construed as representation by us or any person that the future events plans or

expectations contemplated by us will be achieved We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking

statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and Bank are in accordance with accounting principles generally accept

ed in the United States and conform to general practices within the banking industry Application of these principles requires

management to make estimates or judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompa

nying notes These estimates are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements accordingly as this

information changes the financial statements could reflect different estimates or judgments Certain policies inherently have

greater reliance on the use of estimates and as such have greater possibility of producing results that could be materially

different than originally reported

Estimates or judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value when decline in the

value of an asset not carried on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to

L. ._..LI_LJ I_.LI. --J L_ --iII.-
iie eswuiisi eu oi VV1 Cii clii clSCL UI licluilily

ieeu Lu iie ieuiueu WI Lii I9CI IL upui ULUIC cvcI IL .OI lI 19 aCL ai IU iilkJuuILi

at fair value inherently results in more financial statement volatility The fair values and the information used to record the valu

ation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party

sources when available When third-party information is not available valuation adjustments are estimated in good faith by

management primarily through the use of internal cash flow modeling techniques

The most significant accounting policies for the Company and Bank are presented in Note to the consolidated financial state

ments These policies along with the disclosures presented in the other financial statement notes provide information on how

significant assets and liabilities are valued in the financial statements and how those values are determined Management views

critical accounting policies to be those that are highly dependent on subjective or complex judgments estimates and assump

tions and where changes in those estimates and assumptions could have significant impact on the financial statements Man

agement currently views the determination of the allowance for loan losses to be the only critical accounting policy

The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio

Estimating the amount of the allowance for loan losses requires significant judgment and the use of estimates related to

the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans estimated losses on non-impaired loans based on
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historical loss experience and consideration of current economic trends and conditions all of which may be susceptible to

significant change The loan portfolio also represents thelargest asset type on the consolidated balance sheet Loan losses are

charged off against the allowance while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance provision

for loan losses is charged to operations based on managements periodic evaluation of the factors previously mentioned as well

as other pertinent factors

The allowance for loan losses consists of an allocated component and an unallocated component The components of the al

lowance for loan losses represent an estimation made pursuant to either Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS

No Accounting for Contingencies or SFAS 114 Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of Loan The allocated component of

the allowance for loan losses reflects expected losses resulting from analyses developed through specific credit allocations for

individual loans and historical loss experience for each loan category The specific credit allocations are based on regular analy

ses of all loans over fixed-dollar amount where the internal credit rating is at or below predetermined classification These

analyses involve high degree ofjudgment in estimating the amount of loss associated with specific loans including estimating

the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values The historical loss element is determined using the average of

actual losses incurred over prior years for each type of loan The historical loss experience is adjusted for known changes in eco

nomic conditions and credit quality trends such as changes in the amount of past due and nonperforming loans The resulting

loss allocation factors are applied to the balance of each type of loan after removing the balance of impaired loans from each

category

There are many factors affecting the allowance for loan losses some are quantitative while others require qualitative judgment

Although management believes its process
for determining the allowance adequately considers all the potential factors that

could potentially result in credit losses the process includes subjective elements and may be susceptible to significant change

To the extent actual outcomes differ from management estimates additional provisions for loan losses could be required that

could adversely affect earnings or financial position in future periods

Additional information on the Banks loan portfolio and allowance for loan losses can be found in the Loan Portfolio section

on pages 15-18 of this Managements Discussion and Analysis Note ito the consolidated financial statements also includes

additional information on the Banks accounting policies related to the allowance for loan losses

Consolidated Financial Information

Certain financial information for the Company and Bank consolidated and solely for the Bank as of and for the years ended

December 31 20082007 and 2006 is presented below

2008 2007 2006

Total Assets Net Income Total Assets Net Income Total Assets Net Income

in thousands

Consolidated $460828 $2800 $447869 $290i $417471 $2897

Bankonly $460726 $2983 $447852 $3155 $417154 $3040

Parent company only 183 254 143

During 2008 the Company funded operational costs primarily through the income tax credit provided by the Bank and

proceeds from the exercise of stock options The Company incurred $269108 in operational costs for the year ended December

31 2008 The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $86497 resulting in net loss of $182611 for 2008

The Company has an agreement with financial institution that provided the Company with line of credit of upto $3 million

through December 30 2003 The original principal balance of $900000 under this line of credit is payable in nine annual in

stallments of $100000 that began on January 12005 This line of credit matures January 12014 and bears interest at the prime

rate minus 50 basis points As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the outstanding balance under the line of credit was $500000

and $600000 respectively The arrangement requires the Company and the Bank to comply with certain financial and other

covenants At December31 2008 the Company and the Bank were in compliance with all but one of these covenants The Com

panys ratio of classified assets to Tier capital was slightly higher than the required ratio but waiver of the covenant require

ment for December31 2008 was granted by the financial institution At December31 2007 the Company and the Bank were in

compliance with all covenants Future noncompliance with this covenant would not have material impact on the Companys

ability to meet future obligations
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Results of Operations Comparison of 2008 and 2007

lDrco cki
Li CI CII ..J

For the year ended December31 2008 the Company and Bank consolidated experienced an increase in total assets and slight

decrease in net income Total assets increased 2.9% to $460.8 million at December 31 2008 from $447.9 million at December

31 2007 Average total assets were $452.4 million in 2008 and $421.1 million in 2007 an increase of $31.3 million or 7.4% This

increase in average assets is primarily the result of the Banks loan portfolio growth during 2008 Net loans held for investment

increased from $317.1 million at December 31 2007 to $332.0 million at December 31 2008 an increase of $14.9 million or

4.7% Commercial loans increased $1.6 million or 5.4% from $29.6 million at December 31 2007 to $31.2 million at December

312008 Real estate mortgage loans decreased $1.5 million or0.8%from $192.7 million at December 31 2007 to $191.2 million

at December 31 2008 and real estate construction loans increased $15.4 million or 17.2% from $89.6 million at December 31

2007 to $105.0 million at December 31 2008 Installment and consumer loans decreased $1.4 million or 13.3% from $10.5 mil

lion at December 312007 to $9.1 million at December 312008 The decreases in installment and consumer loans and real estate

mortgage loans are primarily the result of weaker demand in this segment of the loan portfolio.The increases in the commercial

and construction loan categories are the result of the Banks continuing efforts to increase these types of loans and the overall

stability of the Richmond McDuffie and Columbia County Georgia market areas Loans held for sale by the Bank decreased

$1 1.1 million or 28.1% from $39.5 million at December 31 2007 to $28.4 million at December 31 2008 primarily as result of

the mortgage industry downturn during 2008

The allowance for loan losses was $4284000 at December 31 2008 and $5059000 at December 31 2007 This represents

decrease of $775000 or 15.3% The decrease in the allowance is based upon managements rating and assessment of the loan

portfolio and the credit risk inherent in the portfolio and reflects an increase in loan charge-offs during 2008 partially offset

by the continued growth in the Banks loan portfolio The Banks ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross loans was 1.17% at

December 312008 and 1.40% at December 31 2007 Substantially all loans held for sale originated by the Bank consist of well-

secured single family residential mortgage loans which are originated with sales commitment and are sold in the secondary

market shortly after origination thus greatly reducing the Banks credit risk The Banks ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross

loans excluding loans held for sale was 1.27% at December 31 2008 compared to 1.57% at December 31 2007

The asset growth of the Bank during 2008 was funded through deposit account activity within the Banks existing market areas

as well as out-of-market funding through short-term borrowings from correspondent banks and from lines of credit estab

lished with the Federal Home Loan Bank Total deposit accounts at December 31 2008 were $377.0 million decrease of $3.0

million or 0.8% from $380.0 million at December 31 2007 Total other borrowings by the Bank were $41.1 million at December

31 2008 an increase of $1 3.7 million or 50.0% from the balance of $27.4 million at December 31 2007 Borrowings were up in

2008 as result of the decrease in deposit accounts

The Banks loan to deposit ratio was 96.7% at December 31 2008 and 95.2% at December 31 2007 Excluding mortgage loans

held for sale this ratio was 89.2% for 2008 and 84.8% for 2007

income Statement

Interest income was $26.4 million for 2008 compared to $29.0 million for 2007 This represents decrease of $2.6 million or 9.0%

This decrease was primarily the result of the continued tightening of the lowering of interest rates and the market deterioration

experienced in 2008 Interest expense decreased $2.7 million or 17.2% from $15.7 million for 2007 to $13.0 million for 2008 This

decrease in interest expense was primarily due to decrease in interest-bearing deposits and the lower cost of funds resulting

from the falling interest rate environment in 2008 In an effort to obtain growth in deposit accounts to fund the growing loan

portfolio the Bank focuses its marketing efforts in the local markets served by the Bank and performs strategic planning with

respect to obtaining out-of-market funds Despite the decrease in interest-bearing deposits non-interest bearing deposits in

creased $3.8 million or 12.5% from $30.3 million in 2007 to $34.1 million in 2008.This increase in non-interest bearing deposits

is primarily the result of the Banks marketing efforts related to its ATM Anywhere Free Checking product Net interest income for

2008 and 2007 was flat at $13.3 million

Non-interest income for 2008 and 2007 was also flat at $9.9 million

Non-interest expense decreased slightlyfrom $17.8 million in 2007 to $17.7 million in 2008 decrease of $0.1 million or 0.6% as

management exercised control over costs as margins declined

In total net income decreased in 2008 by $100000 or 3.4% from $2.9 million in 2007 to $2.8 million in 2008 as result of each

of the above factors
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Results of Operations Comparison of 2007 and 2006

Balance Sheet

For the year ended December31 2007 the company and Bank consolidated experienced an increase in total assets and slight

increase in net income Total assets increased 7.3% to $447.9 million at December 31 2007 from $417.5 million at December

312006 Average total assets were $421.1 million in 2007 and $372.8 million in 2006 an increase of $48.3 million or 13.0% This

increase in average assets was primarily the result of strong loan demand and an increase in investments during 2007 Net loans

held for investment increased from $276.5 million at December 312006 to $317.1 million at December 31 2007 an increase of

14.7% commercial loans increased $1.9 million or 6.9% from $27.7 million at December 31 2006 to $29.6 million at December

31 2007 Real estate mortgage loans increased $23.6 million or 14.0% from $169.1 million at December 31 2006 to $192.7 mil

lion at December 31 2007 and real estate construction loans increased $16.1 million or 21.9%from $73.5 million at December

31 2006 to $89.6 million at December31 2007 Installment and consumer loans decreased $100000 or 0.9% from $10.6 million

at December 31 2006 to $10.5 million at December 31 2007 The decrease in installment and consumer loans was primarily the

result of softer demand in this segment of the loan portfolio The increases in each of the other loan categories were the result

of the Banks continuing efforts to increase these types of loans Loans held for sale by the Bank decreased 30.5% from $56.8 mil

lion at December 31 2006 to $39.5 million at December 31 2007 as result of mortgage rate increases and tightening of credit

policy in the mortgage market during the last six months of 2007

The allowance for loan losses was $5059000 at December 31 2007 and $4386000 at December 31 2006 This represents an

increase of $673000 or 15.3% The increase in the allowance is based upon managements rating and assessment of the loan

portfolio and the credit risk inherent in the portfolio and reflects the growth in the Banks loan portfolio The Banks ratio of al

lowance for loan losses to gross loans was 1.40% at December31 2007 and 1.30% at December 31 2006 Substantially all loans

held for sale originated by the Bank consist of well-secured single family residential mortgage loans which are originated with

sales commitment and are sold in the secondary market shortly after origination thus greatly reducing the Banks credit risk.The

Banks ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross loans excluding loans held for sale was 1.57% at December31 2007 compared

to 1.56% at December 312006

The asset growth of the Bank during 2007 was funded through deposit account growth within the Banks existing market areas

as well as out-of-market funding through short-term borrowings from correspondent banks and from lines of credit estab

lished with the Federal Home Loan Bank Total deposit accounts at December 31 2007 were $380.0 million an increase of $38.7

million or 11.3%from $341.3 million at December31 2006.Total other borrowings bythe Bankwere $27.4 million at December

31 2007 decrease of $11.2 million or 29.0% from the balance of $38.6 million at December 31 2006 Borrowings were down

in 2007 as result of the growth in deposit accounts

The Banks loan to deposit ratio was 95.2% at December 31 2007 and 98.9% at December 312006 Excluding mortgage loans

held for sale this ratio was 84.8% for 2007 and 82.3% for 2006

Income Statement

Interest income was $29.0 million for 2007 compared to $25.3 million for 2006 This represents an increase of $3.7 million or

14.6%.This increase was attributable to both higher loan volume as well as higher yields Interest expense increased $3.7 million

or 30.8% from $12.0 million for 2006 to $15.7 million for 2007 This increase in interest expense was also the result of increased

deposit account balances as well as higher cost of funds for the year The increase in deposit accounts was result of market

ing efforts in the local markets served by the Bank and strategic planning with respect to obtaining out-of-market funds The

Bank focuses on obtaining growth in deposit accounts to fund the Banks loan growth Non-interest bearing deposits decreased

$9.5 million or 23.9% from $39.8 million in 2006 to $30.3 million in 2007 due primarily to the change in mortgage loan funding

requirements and the resulting decrease in the required balance of the corresponding deposit account Net interest income for

2007 was $13.3 million representing slight decrease of $100000 or 0.7% from $13.4 million in 2006

Non-interest income of $9.9 million was recorded in 2007 slight increase of $100000 or 1.0% from the $9.8 million recorded in 2006

Non-interest expense decreased slightly from $17.9 million in 2006 to $17.8 million in 2007a decrease of $100000 or 0.6%

In total net income for 2007 remained steady at $2.9 million compared to 2006 as result of each of the above factors

Distribution of Assets LiabUities and Shareholders Equity Interest Rates and Interest Differential

The following table presents the average balance sheet of the consolidated Company for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 Also presented is the consolidated companys actual interest income and expense from each asset and liability

the average yield of each interest-earning asset and the average cost of each interest-bearing liability This table includes all

major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
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CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS
in thousands

Year Ended December31

ASSETS

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS

Loans net of unearned income

Investment securities

Fed funds soEd cash in banks

Total interest-earning assets

NON-INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Bank premises and fixed assets

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Allowance for loan losses

Total assets

OTHER INTEREST-BEARING

LIABILITIES

Borrowed funds

Total interest-bearing liabilities

6296

10260

1956

12978

5190

452360

37390 1088

376832 13038

7530

10623

2031

6746

4640

$421074

7404

10879

1779

4010

4039

372752

5.04% 21592 1163

4.53% 302354 11969

NON-INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and

shareholders equity

Interest rate spread

Net interest income

Net interest margin

Average interest-earning assets to

average total assets

Average loans to average deposits

2008

Average Interest

Balance Income

Expense

2007

Average Interest

Balance Income

Expense

Average

Yield

Rate

2006

Average Interest

Balance Income

Expense

360689

61375

3996

426060

336434

57463

4887

398784

7.73% 302778 23144

4.80% 47153 2053

5.35% 2788 138

7.28% 352719 25335

Average

Yield

Rate

6.43%

5.05%

2.13%

6.19%

1.19%

2.09%

1.90%

431%

3.52%

$23186

3100
85

26371

376

1408

167

9999

11950

25998

2760
261

29019

478

2928

307

11201

1-4914

LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

NOW accounts

Savings accounts

Money market accounts

Time accounts

Total interest-bearing deposits

Average

Yield

Rate

7.64%

4.35%

4.95%

7.18%

1.69%

3.72%

2.96%

4.34%

3.85%

5.39%

3.96%

$31674

67259

8773

231736

339442

28935

68691

10982

222664

331272

1.65% 29395 497

4.26% 53603 1994

2.79% 18782 555

5.03% 178982 7760

4.5 0% 280762 10806

2.91% 15721 792

3.46% 346993 15706

33501 34789 36717

3971 4922 3433

38056 34370 30248

$452360 $421074 $372752

$13333

2.73%

3.13%

94.19%

96.71%

2.75% 3.22%

$13313 $13366

3.34% 3.79%

94.71%

91 .91%

94.63%

95.37%
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Rate/Volume Analysis of Net Interest Income

The following table sets forth information regarding changes in net interest income attributable to changes in average balances and

changes in rates for the periods indicated The effect of change in average balance has been determined by applying the average

rate in the earlier period to the change in average balance in the later period as compared with the earlier period.The balance of the

change in interest income or expense and net interest income has been attributed to change in average rate Non-accruing loans

have been included in the categoryNet loans and loans held for sale

comparison of Years Ended
Comparison ofYears Ended

December 312008 December 312007 December 312007 December 312006

in thousands

Increase Decrease Due to

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest earned on

Tax-exempt securities 64 67 64 32 96

Taxablesecurities 113 160 273 379 232 611

Federal funds sold and cash in banks 47 129 176 106 17 123

Net loans and loans held for sale 1874 4686 2812 2573 281 2854

Total interest income 2004 4652 2648 3122 562 3684

Interest paid on

NOWdeposits 45 147 102 11 19

Moneymarketdeposits 62 78 140 230 18 248

Savings deposits 61 1459 1520 561 373 934

Time deposits 457 1659 1202 1894 1547 3441

Borrowed funds 1173 877 296 351 20 371
Total interest expense $1552 4220 2668 $1866 $1871 $3737

Increase decrease in net

interest income $452 432 20 $1256 1309 53

Deposits

The Bank offers wide range of commercial and consumer interest bearing and non-interest bearing deposit accounts includ

ing checking accounts money market accounts negotiable order of withdrawal NOW accounts individual retirement accounts

certificates of deposit and regular savings accounts The sources of deposits are residents businesses and employees of businesses

within the Banks market area obtained through the personal solicitation of the Banks officers and directors direct mail solicitation

and advertisements published in the local media The Bank also utilizes the brokered certificate of deposit market and the Promon

tory Interfinancial Network CDARS program for funding needs for loan origination and liquidity These brokered and CDAR5 de

posits are included in time deposits on the balance sheet The Bank pays competitive interest rates on time and savings deposits In

addition the Bank has implemented service charge fee schedule competitive with other financia institutions in the Banks market

area covering such matters as maintenance fees on checking accounts per item processing fees on checking accounts returned

check charges and similar items

The following table details for the periods indicated the average amount of and average rate paid on each of the following deposit

categories in thousands
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Yearnded Year Ended Year Ended

December31 2008 December 312007 December31 2006

Average Average Average Avrage Average
Average

Amount
Paid

Amount
Paid

Amount
Paid

Deposit Category

Non-interest bearing

demand deposits $34034 $35062 $36717

NOW and money
marketdeposits 40447 1.34% 39917 1.97% 48177 2.18%

Savings deposits 67259 2.09% 68691 4.26% 53603 3.72%

Timedeposits 231736 4.31% 222664 5.03% 178982 4.34%

The maturities of certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts of $100000 or more as of December 31 2008 were

as follows in thousands

Three months or less 37231

Over three months through six months 25122
Over six months through twelve months 95180
Over twelve months 13345

Total $170878

Borrowed Funds

The Banks borrowed funds consist of short-term borrowings and long-term debt including federal funds purchased retail and

other repurchase agreements and lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank The average balance of borrowed funds was

approximately $36.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $15.1 million and $20.8 million for the years

ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively

The most significant borrowed funds categories for the Bank are three lines of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank consist

ing of the Loans Held for SaleLHFS program formerly known as the warehouse line of credit 1-4 family housing loan line

of credit 1-4 LOC and long-term convertible advance

At December 31 2008 there was no outstanding balance on the LHFS line of credit compared to an outstanding balance of

$1342686 with an interest rate of 5.19% at December 31 2007 At December 31 2006 the outstanding balance on the LHFS

line of credit was $23328076 with an interest rate of 6.06% The average balance outstanding on the LHFS line of credit was

$76125 for 2008 with weighted average interest rate of 2.83% The average balance outstanding on the LHFS line of credit was

$2448636 for 2007 with weighted average interest rate of 5.82% The average balance outstanding for 2006 was $7574412

with weighted average interest rate of 5.69% The maximum amount outstanding on the LHFS line of credit at any month end

during 2008 was $0 compared to $5477302 in 2007 and $24213305 in 2006.The LHFS line of credit is secured by the mortgage

loans held for sale originated wfth the borrowed funds The interest rate on the LHF5 line of credit is equal to the Federal Home

LOdil DdIIIS LdII dL LlUI1 rruyiiii IdW PIUS JU LJdSIS JUlIuS

At December 31 2008 the outstanding balance on the 1-4 LOC was $6000000 with an interest rate of 0.46% compared to an

outstanding balance of $5000000 with an interest rate of 4.40% at December 31 2007 At December 31 2006 the outstand

ing balance on the 1-4 LOC was $8500000 with an interest rate of 5.50% The average balance outstanding on the 1-4 LOC

was $8297541 for 2008 with weighted average interest rate of 2.40% The average balance outstanding on the 1-4 LOC was

$6011781 for 2007 with weighted average interest rate of 5.32 The average balance outstanding for 2006 was $7370137

with weighted average interest rate of 5.56% The maximum amount outstanding on the 1-4 LOC at any month end during

2008 was $24200000 compared to $11000000 in 2007 and $9200000 in 2006 This 1-4 LOC is secured by the Banks portfolio

of 1-4 family first mortgage loans excluding those loans that are held for sale The interest rate on the 1-4 LOC is equal to the

Federal Home Loan Banks Daily Rate Credit Program rate

During 2007 long-term convertible advance was established as new additional line of credit At December 31 2008 the

outstanding balance on this advance was $10.0 million with weighted average interest rate of 3.83% This advance matures

December 2012 and is callable until December 2010 An additional but similar long-term convertible advance was established

during 2008 At December 31 2008 the outstanding balance on this new advance was $15.0 million with weighted average

interest rate of 3.33% This advance matures May 2013 and is callable until May 2010

14 2008 ANNUAL REPORT



Loan Portfolio

The Bank engages in full complement of lending activities including commercial consumer/installment and real estate loans

As of December31 2008 the Banks loan portfolio consisted of 56.8% real estate mortgage loans 31.2% real estate construction

loans 9.3% commercial loans and 2.7% consumer/installment loans

Commercial lending is directed principally towards businesses whose demands for funds fall within the Banks legal lending lim

its and which are potential deposit customers of the Bank This category of loans includes loans made to individual partnership

or corporate borrowers for variety of business purposes These loans include short-term lines of credit short- to medium-term

plant and equipment loans loans for general working capital and letters of credit

The Banks consumer loans consist primarily of installment loans to individuals for personal family or household purposes in

cluding automobile loans to individuals and pre-approved lines of credit

The Banks real estate mortgage loans include commercial mortgage lending and residential mortgage lending.The Banks com
mercial mortgage loans are generally secured by office buildings retail establishments and other types of property The Banks

residential mortgage loans are primarily single-family residential loans secured by the residential property

The Banks real estate construction loans consist of residential and commercial construction loans as well as land development

loans These loans are primarily construction and development loans to builders in the Augusta and Savannah Georgia areas

and the Jacksonville Florida area

While risk of loss in the Banks loan portfolio is primarily tied to the credit quality of the various borrowers risk of loss may also

increase due to factors beyond the Banks control such as local regional and/or national economic downturns General condi

tions in the real estate market may also impact the relative risk in the Banks real estate portfolio

With respect to loans which exceed the Banks lending limits or established credit criteria the Bank may originate such loans

and sell them to another bank The Bank may also purchase loans originated by other banks Management of the Bank does not

believe that loan purchase participations will necessarily pose any greater risk of loss than loans which the Bank originates

The following table presents the categories of loans contained in the Banks loan portfolio as of the end of the five most recent

fiscal years and the total amount of all loans for such periods

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in thousands

Type of Loan

Commercialfinancialandagricultural $31173 $29582 $27692 $29945 $30820

t-cei estaieconstruction 105032 ö95 /3502 55131 4b581

Realestatemortgage 191152 192668 169141 152497 127691

lnstallmentandconsumer 9092 10487 10609 10189 11705

Subtotal $336449 $322317 $280944 $248368 $216797

Less

Unearned income and deferred loan

Fees 156 116 61 57 69
Allowance for possible loan losses 4284 5059 4386 3756 3416

Total net of allowance 332009 317142 276497 244555 213312

In addition to the above at December 31 2008 the Bank also had $28A million of single family residential mortgage loans

held for sale that were originated by the Banks Mortgage Division
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The table below presents an analysis of maturities of certain categories of loans as of December 31 2008

Due in Due in Due After

Type of Loan Year or Less to Years Years Total

in thousands

Commercial financial and agricultural 20952 $10004 217 31173

Real estate-construction 84337 20695 105032

Total $105289 $30699 $217 $136205

The following is presentation of an analysis of sensitivities of certain loans those presented in the maturity table above to

changes in interest rates as of December 31 2008 in thousands

Loans due after year with predetermined interest rates $12355

Loans due after year with floating interest rates $18561

The following table presents information regarding non-accrual and past due loans at the dates indicated

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in thousands

Loans accounted for on non-accrual basis

Number 56 65 49 73 75

Amount $5061 $11558 $2286 $1708 $1664

Accruing loans which are contractually past due

90 days or more as to principal and interest payments

Number 10

Amount $1 $18 $71 $297 $444

The Bank does not have any loans which are troubled debt restructuringsas defined in SEAS No 15

Accrual of interest is discontinued when loan becomes 90 days past due as to principal and interest or when in managements

judgment the interest will not be collectible in the normal course of business Additional interest income of $93125 in 2008

would have been recorded if all loans accounted for on non-accrual basis had been current in accordance with their original

terms No interest income has been recognized in 2008 on loans that have been accounted for on non-accrual basis

At December 31 2008 there were no loans classified for regulatory purposes as doubtful substandard or special mention that

have not been disclosed above which represent or result from trends or uncertainties which management reasonably expects

will materially impact future operating results liquidity or capital resources or ii represent material credits about which man

agement is aware of any information which causes management to have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to

comply with the loan repayment terms
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Summaryof Loan Loss Experience

An analysis of the Banks loss experience is furnished in the following table for the periods indicated

Years Ended December 31

in thousands

In the normal course of business the Bank has recognized and will continue to recognize losses resulting from the inability of

certain borrowers to repay loans and the insufficient realizable value of collateral securing such loans

Accordingly management has established an allowance for loan losses which totaled approximately $4284000 at December31

2008 which is allocated according to the following table along with the percentage of loans in each category to total loans

In evaluating the Banks allowance for loan losses management has taken into consideration concentrations within the

loan portfolio past loan loss experience growth of the portfolio current economic conditions and the appraised val

ue of collateral securing loans Although management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate manage
ments evaluation of losses is continuing process which may necessitate adjustments to the allowance in future periods

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$5059

1107

223

110

824

2264

$4386

163

97

28

288

$3756

106

95

98

299

$3416

521

129

73

723

$3164

240

127

333

700

Allowance for loan losses beginning of year

Charge offs

Construction land development and

other land loans

Commercial financial and agricultural

Installment and consumer

Real estate -1ortgage

Recoveries

Construction land development

and other land loans

Commercial financial and agricultural

Installment and consumer

Real estate mortgage

Net charge-offs recoveries

Provision charged to operations

Allowance for loan losses end of year

Ratio of net charge-offs recoveries during the period

to average loans outstanding during the period

Allowance for Loan Losses

10 16 34

25 31 14

11 130

33 52 31 41 144

2231 236 268 682 556

1456 909 898 1022 808

$4284 $5059 $4386 $3756 $3416

.62% .07% .09% .24% .23%

2008 2007 2006 2005

$in thousands

2004

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Commercial

financial and

agricultural $436 9.3% $562 9.2% $883 9.9% $543 12.1% $581 14.2%

Real estate

construction 1838 31.2% 27.8% 1442 26.2% 1312 22.4% 1165 21.5%

Real estate

Mortgage 1770 56.8% 2247 59.8% 1760 60.2% 1671 61.4% 1432 58.9%

Consumer and

installment 133 2.7% 195 3.2% 191 3.7% 136 4.1% 152 5.4%

Unallocated 107 -- 127 -- 110 -- 94 -- 86 --

Total $4284 $5059 $4386 $3756 $3416

2008 ANNUAL REPORT 17



Real estate mortgage loans constituted approximately 56.8% of outstanding loans at December 31 2008 These loans include

both commercial and residential mortgage loans Management believes the risk of loss for commercial real estate loans is gener

ally higher than residential loans Management continuously monitors the performance of the commercial real estate portfolio

and collateral values Residential mortgages are generally secured by the underlying residence Management of the Bank cur

rently believes that these loans are adequately secured

Real estate construction loans represented approximately 31.2% of the Banks outstanding loans at December 31 2008 This

category of the loan portfolio consists of commercial and residential construction and development loans located in the Banks

market areas in Georgia and Florida Management of the Bank closely monitors the performance of these loans and periodically

inspects properties and development progress Management considers these factors in estimating and evaluating the allow

ance for loan losses

Commercial loans represented approximately 9.3% of outstanding loans at December 31 2008 Commercial loans are generally

considered by management as having greater risk than other categories of loans in the Banks loan portfolio However the Bank

generally originates commercial loans on secured basis and at December 31 2008 over 98% of the Banks commercial loans

were secured Management believes that the secured status of substantial portion of the commercial loan portfolio greatly

reduces the risk of loss inherently present in commercial loans

Consumer and installment loans represented approximately 2.7% of outstanding loans at December 31 2008 and are also well

secured At December 31 2008 the majority of the Banks consumer loans were secured by collateral primarily consisting of

automobiles boats and other personal property Management believes that these loans inherently possess less risk than other

categories of loans

Loans held for sale consist of single family residential mortgage loans originated by the Banks Mortgage Division These loans

are originated with an investor purchase commitment and are sold shortly after origination by the Bank

The Banks management and Board of Directors monitor the loan portfolio monthly to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance

for loan losses Ratings on classified loans are also reviewed and performance is evaluated in determining the allowance The

provision for loan losses charged to operations is based on this analysis In addition management and the Board consider such

factors as delinquent loans collateral values and economic conditions in their evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash on hand cash items in the process of collection and amounts due from correspondent banks and the Federal Reserve Bank

are included in cash and due from banks As of December 31 2008 interest-bearing cash due from banks totaled $1.3 million

and funds required to be on reserve with the Federal Reserve totaled $960000

Investments

As of December 31 2008 investment securities comprised approximately 12.5% of the Banks assets The Bank invests primarily

in obligations of the United States or agencies of the United States mortgage-backed securities and obligations certain obli

-.-.4--.-.- Sf .--I-.- -.-.l .-.. -...-- .-- U-- I.--.-I-..- I-.-d --..-I .-- Tk
IJULIIJI ll tUtC3 UI 111 II UI IILIJ0IILIC3 till Ji.Jl ULC 3CLUI ItIC CLICI CII 11111 IC LIJCII 1101 II\ tuLr. 01111 1101 ITVIJVVI 1CA IIIC II IDUI CII ILC IC

Bank also enters into federal funds transactions with its principal correspondent banks The Bank may act as net seller or net

purchaser of such funds

The following table presents for the dates indicated the estimated fair market value of the Banks investment securities avail

able for sale The Bank has classified all of its investment securities as available for sale

December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Obligations of the U.S Treasury and other U.S government agencies 27330 32148 26177

Mortgage-backed securities 20190 19332 21415

Obligations of States and political subdivisions 9924 7243 5681

Corporateobligations 150 183

Total investment securities 57594 58906 53273

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2201 1487 2131

Total investment securities and FHLB stock 59795 60393 55404
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The following tables present the contractual maturities and weighted average yields of the Banks investment securities as of

December 31 2008

Maturities of Investment Securities

LESS ONE FIVE OVER
THAN ONE TOFIVE TOTEN TEN

YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS

in thousands

Obligations of the U.S Treasury and other U.S government agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Obligations of States and political subdivisions

Corporate obligations

Federal home loan bank stock

Total

LESS ONE FIVE OVER

THAN ONE TOFIVE TOTEN TEN
YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS

Obligations of the U.S Treasury and other U.S government agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Obligations of States and political subdivisions

Corporate obligations

Federal home loan bank stock

Total weighted average yield

The weighted average yields on tax-exempt obligations presented in the table above have been computed on tax-equivalent

basis

With the exception of U.S government agency securities the Bank did not have investments with single issuer exceeding in

the aggregate 10% of the Companys shareholders equity

In September 2007 an $8.0 million bank-owned life insurance policy BOLl was acquired in order to insure the key officers of the

Bank Per FASB Technical Bulletin 85-4 this policy is classified as miscellaneous asset at its cash surrender value net of surren

der charges and/or early termination charges As of December31 2008 the BOLl cash surrender value was $8401691 resulting

in other income for 2008 of $31 5832 and an annualized net yield of 3.84%

kiJ fi

The following table presents certain profitability return and capital ratios for the Company as of the end of the past three fiscal years

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Return on Average Assets 0.62% 0.69% 0.78%

Return on Average Equity 7.36% 8.39% 9.57%

Dividend Payout Ratio -- -- --

Equity to Assets Ratio 8.48% 8.03% 7.70%

Deposit levels and the associated timing and quantity of funds flowing into and out of bank inherently involve degree of

uncertainty In order to ensure that it is capable of meeting depositors demands for funds the Bank must maintain adequate

liquidity Liquid assets consisting primarily of cash and deposits due from other banks federal funds sold and investment securi

ties maturing within one year provide the source of such funds Insufficient liquidity may forcea bank to engage in emergency

measures to secure necessary funding which could be costly and negatively affect earnings The Bank monitors its liquidity on

monthly basis and seeks to maintain it at an optimal level

$- $- $11822 $15508

1246 18944

226 833 3602 5263
150

2201

$2427 $2079 $15574 $39715

Weighted Average Yields

3.62%

3.62% 5.61% 5.70%

5.60%

4.29%

4.22%

5.35% 5.71%

5.20%

5.83%

4.42% 5.43% 5.48%
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As of December 31 2008 the Banks liquidity ratio was 20.4% as compared to 17.9% at December 312007 In addition to the liquid

assets described above the Bank has reserve funding source in the form of federal funds lines of credit with Silverton Bank and

SunTrust Bank Management is not aware of any demands commitments or uncertainties which could materially affect the Banks

liquidity position However should an unforeseen demand forfunds arise the Bank held readily marketable investment securities at

December 31 2008 with market value of $57.6 million in its available-for-sale portfolio which would provide an additional source

of liquidity

Gap management is conservative asset/liability strategy designed to maximize earnings over complete interest rate cycle while

reducing or minimizing the Banks exposure to interest rate risk Various assets and liabilities are termed rate sensitive when the

interest rate can be replaced By definition the gap is the difference between rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabilities in

given time horizon At December 31 2008 the Bank was asset sensitive except in the 3-12 month time frame

The following is an analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities as of December 31 2008 in thousands

0-3 mos 3-12 mos 1-5 years
Total

Taxable securities $- 5- $1246 $46424 $47670

Tax-exempt securities 226 833 8865 9924

Federal funds sold and cash in banks 9954 9954

Loans 195740 44863 119406 4686 364695

Total rate sensitive assets 205694 45089 121485 59975 432243

NOW and money market deposits 47145 47145

Savings deposits 55426 55426

Time deposits 49285 165887 24844 301 240317

Total rate sensftive deposits 151856 165887 24844 301 342888

Borrowedfunds 15128 15128

Total rate sensitive liabilities 166984 165887 24844 301 358016

Excess of rate sensitive assets less rate

sensitive liabilities $38710 120798 $96641 $59674 $74227

Cumulative ratio of rate sensitive assets

to liabilities 123% 75% 104% 121%

Cumulative gap 38710 82088 $14553 74227

The equity capital of the Bank totaled $39.0 million at December 31 2008 an increase of $3.0 million or 8.3% from equity capital

of $36.0 million at December 31 2007 The increase in equity capital was attributable to the Banks net income of $3.0 million and

negligible decrease of $7000 in the Banks after-tax unrealized gain/loss on available-for-sale securities which under Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard No.115 is recognized in the available-for-sale portion of the bond portfolio by making adjustments

to the equity capital account The equity capital of the Company totaled $39.1 million at December 31 2008

Management believes that the capitalization of the Company and the Bank is adequate to sustain the growth experienced in 2008 The

following table sets forth the applica1e actual and required capital ratios for the Company and the Bank as of December 31 2008

December 31 2008 Minimum Regulatory Requirement

Bank

Total risk-based capital ratio 10.89% 8.0%

Tier Capital ratio 9.80% 4.0%

Leverage ratio 8.58% 4.0%

Company Consolidated

Total risk-based capital ratio 10.91% 8.0%

Tier Capital ratio 9.82% 4.0%

Leverage ratio 8.59% 4.0%

The above ratios indicate that the capital position of the Company and the Bank are sound and that the Company is well

positioned for future growth
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There are no commitments of capital resources known to management which would have material impact on the Banks

capital position

VREd SJ

On January 2008 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SEAS No 157 Fair Value Measure-

mentswhich defines fair value establishes frameworkfor measuring fair value in accordance with U.S GAAP and expands dis

closures about fair value measurements The Company has elected not to delay the application of SFAS No 157 to non-financial

assets and non-financial liabilities as allowed by Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Staff Position SFAS 157-2 SEAS

No 157 applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value and therefore does

not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received

to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants on the measurement date SFAS No 157 clarifies that fair value should be based on

the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability and establishes fair value hierarchy that pri

oritizes the information used to develop those assumptions The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices

in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data SFAS No 157 requires fair value measurements to be separately

disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy Under SEAS No 157 the Company bases fair values as defined above For assets

and liabilities recorded at fair value it is the Companys policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of

unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements in accordance with the fair value hierarchy in SEAS No 157

Fair value measurements for assets and liabilities where there exists limited or no observable market data and therefore are

based primarily upon estimates are often calculated based on the economic and competitive environment the characteristics

of the asset or liability and other factors Therefore the results cannot be determined with precision and may not be realized in

an actual sale or immediate settlement of the asset or liability Additionally there may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation

technique and changes in the underlying assumptions used including discount rates and estimates of future cash flows could

significantly affect the results of current or future values

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine

fair value disclosures Securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Additionally from time to time

the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on nonrecurring basis such as loans held for sale loans held

for investment and certain other assets These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost

or market accounting or write-downs of individual assets

Under SFAS No 157 the Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels based on the markets in which the

assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.These levels are

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets such as the New York Stock Exchange The Com
pany had no Level assets or liabilities at December 31 2008

Level Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources via independent providers for market transactions in

volving similarassets or liabilities.The Companys principal market for these securities is the secondary institutional markets and

valuations are based on observable market data in those markets At December 31 2008 Level securities included U.S Govern

ment agency obligations state and municipal bonds corporate debt securities mortgage-backed securities and FHLB stock

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies including option pricing mod
els discounted cash flow models and similar techniques and not based on market exchange dealer or broker traded transac

tions Level valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets

or liabilities The Company had no Level assets or liabilities at December 31 2008

Following is description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value
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Investment Securities Available-for-Sale

Investment securities available-for-sale including FHLB stock are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Fair value measurement

is based upon quoted prices if available If quoted prices are not available fair values are measured using independent pricing mod

els or other model-based valuation techniques such as present value of future cash flows adjusted for the securities credit rating

prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions At December 31 2008 the Company classified $59.8

million of investment securities available-for-sale including FHLB stock subject to recurring fair value adjustments as Level

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value The fair value of loans held for sale is based on what secondary

markets are currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics As such the Company classifies loans subjected to nonre

curring fair value adjustments as Level There were no fair value adjustments related to the $28.4 million of loans held for sale at

December 31 2008

Loans

The Company does not record loans at fair value on recurring basis However from time to time loan is considered impaired and

an allowance for loan losses is established Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in

accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired Once an individual loan is identified as im

paired management measures the impairment in accordance with SEAS No 14Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of Loan

The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods including collateral value market value of similardebt

enterprise value liquidation value and discounted cash flows.Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans for

which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the recorded investments in such loans At December 31 2008

substantially all of the total impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the collateral In accordance with SEAS No 157

impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral require classification in the fair value hierarchy

When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or current appraised value the Company records the

impaired loans as nonrecurring Level When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the

collateral is further impaired below theappraised value and there is no observable market price the Company records the impaired

loan as nonrecurring Level Impaired loans classified as Level totaled $6.1 million at December 31 2008 and had specific loan

loss allowances aggregating $0.8 million

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets Subsequently foreclosed assets are car

ried at the lower of carrying value or fair value Fair value is based upon independent market prices appraised values of the collateral

or managements estimation of the value of the collateral When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market

price or current appraised value the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level When an appraised value is

not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired belowthe appraised value and there is no

observable market price the Company records the foreclosed assets as nonrecurring Level There were no fair value adjustments

related to foreclosed real estate of $7.2 million at December 31 2008

Below is table that presents information about certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis

Fair Value Measurements at December31 2008 Using

in thousands

Total Carrying Assets Quoted Prices Significant Significant

Amount in the Liabilities in Active Other Other

Consolidated Measured Markets for Observable Unobservable

BalanceSheet atFairValue ldenticalAssets Inputs Inputs

Description
12312008 12312008 Level Level Level

Available-for-sale securities

including EHLB stock $59795 $59795 $59795
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Market risk is the risk arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to change in interest rates ex

change rates and equity prices Our primary market risk is interest rate risk

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk and achieve reasonable stability in net interest in

come throughout interest rate cycles This is achieved by maintaining the
proper

balance of rate sensitive earning assets and rate sensi

tive liabilities.The relationship that compares rate sensitive earning assets to rate sensitive liabilities is the principal factor in projecting

the effect that fluctuating interest rates will have on future net interest income Rate sensitive earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities are those that can be re-priced to current market rates within relatively short time period Management monitors the rate

sensitivity of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities over the entire life of these instruments in order to manage this risk

We have not experienced high level of volatility in net interest income primarily because of the relatively large base of core depos

its that do not re-price on contractual basis These deposit products include regular savings interest-bearing transaction accounts

and money market savings accounts Balances for these accounts are reported based on historical re-pricing However the rates

paid are typically not directly related to market interest rates since management has some discretion in adjusting these rates as

market rates change

In the ordinary course of business the Bank may enter into off-balance sheet financial instruments which are not reflected in the

financial statements These instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit Such financial instru

ments are recorded in the financial statements when funds are disbursed or the instruments become payable

Following is an analysis of significant off-balance sheet financial instruments at December 31 2008 and 2007

December 312008 December 312007

in thousands

Commitments to extend credit 56426 40492

Standby letters of credit 5102 1912
Total 61528 $42404

Contractua .qato.ns

We have various contractual obligations that we must fund as part of our normal operations The following table shows aggregate

information about our contractual obligations including interest and the periods in which payments are due The amounts and

time periods are measured from December 31 2008 based upon rates in effect at December 31 2008

Payments Due by Period

in thousands

Less than More than
Total

lYear 1-3years 3-5years 5Years

Time Deposits $254914 $228426 $25636 $550 $302

Long-Term Debt 29611 1072 2134 26405
Data Processing Obligations 2236 1032 1204

Operating Lease Obligations 1201 291 566 344

Service Contract Obligations 615 232 272 111

Total $288577 $231053 $29812 $27410 $302
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc

Augusta Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares

Inc and subsidiary the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

income comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period

ended December 31 2008 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our re

sponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Unit

ed States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about wheth

er the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the finan

cial position of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc and subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of

their operations and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Augusta Georgia

March 31 2009

64 oLtai .L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
December 31 2008 and 2007

in thousands except per share amounts

M33 13

2008 2007

Cash and due from banks 9954 6744

Federalfundssold

Securities available-for-sale 57594 58906

Loans net of allowance for loan losses

of $4284 and $5059 respectively 332009 317142

Loans held for sale 28402 39547

Bank premises and fixed assets 10081 10432

Accrued interest receivable 1934 2115

Foreclosed real estate net of allowance 7217 483

Deferred tax asset net 996 1315

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2201 1487

Bank-owned life insurance 8402 8086

Otherassets 2038 1612

Total assets 460828 447869

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities

Deposits

Non-interest bearing 34121 30292

interest-bearing

NOW accounts 37373 27706

Savings 55426 73184

Money market accounts 9772 9449

Time deposits of $100000 or more 170878 145295

Other time deposits 69439 94040

Total deposits 377009 379966

Federal funds purchased 1148 5037

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 6000 6343

Deposit agreements 8611 5993

Current portion of long-term debt 100 100

Long-term debt 25400 10500

Other liabilities 3476 3959

Total liabilities 421744 411898

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock par value $.001 1000000 shares

authorized none issued

Common stock par value $.001 9000000 shares

authorized 3456816 and 3398723 shares issued

and outstanding respectively

Additional paid-in capital 15268 14948

Retained earnings 23604 20804

Accumulated other comprehensive income 208 215

Total shareholders equity 39084 35971

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 460828 447869

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For The Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except per share amounts

2008 2007 2006

Interest income

Interest and fees on loans 23186 25998 23144
Interest on taxable securities 2763 2490 1541

Interest on nontaxable securities 337 270 512

Interest on Federal funds sold and cash in banks 85 261 138

Total interest income 26371 29019 25335

Interest expense

Interest on time deposits of $100000 or more 6414 6687 4976
Interest on other deposits 5536 8227 5830

Interest on funds purchased and other borrowings 1088 792 1163
Total interest expense 13038 15706 11969
Net interest income 13333 13313 13366

Provision for loan losses 1456 909 898

Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 11877 12404 12468
Non-interest income

Service charges on deposits 1338 1273 928

Other income 1430 897 560

Gain on sale of mortgage loans 7152 7762 8312
Total non-interest income 9920 9932 9800

Non-interest expense

Salaries and employee benefits 10958 11131 11801

Occupancy expenses 1546 1523 1467
Other expenses 5241 5162 4643

Total non-interest expense 17745 17816 17911

Income before income taxes 4052 4520 4357
Income tax expense 1252 1619 1460

Net income 2800 2901 2897

Earnings per share

Basic 82 85 86
Diluted .80 .83 .83

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Net income

Unrealized holding gain loss arising during the

period net oftax

Comprehensive income

See notes to consolidated l9nancial statements

in thousands

2008

2800

2793

2007

2901

2006

2897

496 271

3397 3168
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands

Balance at January 12006
Net income

Change in unrealized gain loss

on securities available-for-sale

net of deferred taxes

Proceeds from exercise of

stock options

Stock-based compensation

expense

Issuance of stock for

compensation ________________________________________________________________________________
Balance at December 31 2006

Net income

Change in unrealized gain loss

on securities available-for-sale

net of deferred taxes

Proceeds from exercise of stock

options

Stock-based compensation

expense

Issuance of stock for

compensation ____________________________________________________________________________________
Balance at December 312007

Net income

Change in unrealized gain loss

on securities available-for-sale

net of deferred taxes

Proceeds from exercise of

stock options

Stuck-based curilperIsdilurl

expense

Issuance of stock for

compensation ________________________________________________________________________________
Balance at December 31 2008

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Common Common Additional

Stock Stock Paid-In

Shares Par Value Capital

Retained

Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income Loss

Total

Shareholders

Equity

3354090 $4 $13974 $15006 $552 $28432

2897 2897

271 271

10400 59 59

295 295

12032 172 172

3376522 14500 17903 281 32126

2901 2901

496 496

8500 33 33

226 226

13701 189 189

3398723 14948 20804 215 35971

2800 2800

43133 21 21

134 134

14960 165 165

3456816 $4 $15268 $23604 $208 $39084
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GER9JNA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 2800 2901 2897

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 723 752 764

Provision for loan losses 1456 909 898

Gains on sales of foreclosed real estate 13 33 21
Gains losses on sales of premises and equipment 32

Increase in cash value of bank-owned life insurance 316 86
Stock-based compensation expense 134 226 295

Stockcompensation 165 189 172

Deferred income tax 323 234 172

Net originations proceeds and gain

on loans held for sale 11145 7211 16694

Increase decrease in accrued interest receivable 181 377 18

Increase decrease in accrued interest payable 1110 54 1674

Net change in other assets and liabilities 226 8384 241

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 15713 13160 9928

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase decrease in Federal funds sold 1182 1182
Loan originations and collections net 24983 42690 33619
Purchases of available-for-sale securities 27262 18876 21003

Proceeds from maturities and calls of

available-for-sale securities 28564 14017 6492

Purchases of restricted securities 4816 4248 6946
Proceeds from sales of restricted securities 4102 4892 5840

Proceeds from sale of foreclosed real estate 1939 1285 628

Net additions to premises and equipment 266 456 751

Net cash used in investing activities 22722 44894 50541

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase decrease in deposits funds

purchased and other borrowings 7077 43561 33346

Increase decrease in FHLB borrowings 14657 15485 23828

Increase decrease in repurchase agreements 2618 740 4847

Proceeds from stock options exercised 21 33 59

Net cash provided by financing activities 10219 27369 62080

Net increase decrease in cash and due from banks 3210 4365 1611

Cash and due from banks at beginning of the year 6744 11109 9498

Cash and due from banks at end of the year 9954 6744 11109

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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GERTNA
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 1- Summary of significant accounting policies

Nature of business

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc theCompany is one-bank holding company Substantially all of its business is conducted

by its wholly-owned subsidiary First Bank of Georgia the Bank The Bank is engaged in community banking activities through

its locations in Thomson and Augusta Georgia and the surrounding area Most of the Banks loans and loan commitments have

been granted to customers in the Columbia Richmond and McDuffie County Georgia areas Many of the Banks loan customers

are also depositors of the Bank.The Bank has established mortgage division that operates as First Bank Mortgage.This division

currently has locations in the Augusta and Savannah Georgia areas and in Jacksonville Florida The division originates residen

tial real estate mortgage loans and provides financing to residential construction and development companies Substantially all

residential mortgage loans originated by the division are sold in the secondary market

The Bank is subject to the regulations of Federal and state banking agencies and is periodically examined by them

Significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary bank Sig

nificant inter-company transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation The accounting and reporting policies of the

Bank conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and general practices within the

banking industry

Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and li

abilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Significant concentrations of credit risk substantial portion of the Banks loan portfolio is with customers in the Thomson and

Augusta Georgia market areas The ultimate collectibility of substantial portion of the portfolio is therefore susceptible to

changes in the economic and market conditions in and around these areas

Significant concentrations of deposit risk In October and November 2008 the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC

temporarily increased coverage to $250000 for substantially all depository accounts and temporarily provides unlimited cover

age for certain qualifying and participating non-interest bearing transaction accounts The increased coverage is scheduled to

expire December 31 2009 at which time it is anticipated that amounts insured by the FDIC will return to $100000 During the

year the Company from time to time may have had amounts on deposit in excess of the insured limits

Cash and due from banks For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and due from banks includes cash on hand and amounts

due from banks including cash items in the
process of clearing The Bank maintains due from accounts with banks primarily

located in Georgia Balances generally exceed insured amounts

Investment securities The Banks investments in securities are classified and accounted for as follows

Securities classified as available-for-sale are identified when acquired as being available-for-sale to meet liquidity needs or other

purposes They are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses net of taxes reported in other comprehensive income
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Restricted equity securities without readily determinable fair value are recorded at cost

The Bank has not classified any securities as held-to-maturity or trading

Realized gains and losses on the sale of securities are determined using the specific-identification method on trade date basis

Dividends and interest income are recognized when earned decline in fair value of individual available-for-sale or held-to-

maturity securities below cost that is deemed other than temporary results in write-downs of individual securities to their fair

value

The amortization or premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income using methods approximating the

interest method over the life of the securities

Declines in the fair value of securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as

realized losses In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses management considers the length of time and the

extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the

intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated

recovery in fair value

Loans and interest income Loans are stated at principal amounts outstanding less unearned income and the allowance for loan

losses Interest income on loans is credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding at the respective rate of inter

est except for unearned interest on discounted loans that is recognized as income over the term of the loan using method

that approximates level yield

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are stated at the lower of cost or estimated fair value in the

aggregate Net unrealized losses if any are recognized through valuation allowance by charges to income As the mortgage

loans originated are individually pre-approved by the secondary market investors the Bank is subject to minimal interest rate

and credit risk on these loans as the Bank only holds the loans in the portfolio temporarily until funding from the investor is

completed

Loan commitments whose underlying mortgage loans at origination will be held for sale upon funding of the loan are deriva

tive instruments as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 133 as amended Pursuant to that SFAS

loan commitments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet in other assets and other liabilities at fair value with

changes in their fair values recognized in current period earnings At the inception of loan commitment the Bank generally

will simultaneously enter into best efforts forward loan sale commitment to protect the Bank from losses on sales of the loans

underlying the loan commitment by securing the ultimate sale price and delivery date of the loan

Accrual of interest income is discontinued when loan becomes 90 days past due as to principal and interest or when in man

agements judgment the interest will not be collectible in the normal course of business Accrual of interest on such loans is

resumed when in managements judgment the collection of interest and principal becomes probable When loan is placed on

non-accrual status all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current interest income Interest income

is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuedj

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when in managements judgment the borrower may be unable to

meet payments as due Management applies this criterion to all loans identified for evaluation except for smaller-balance ho

mogeneous residential mortgage and consumer installment loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment Impairment

on loans is measured using either the discounted expected cash flow method or value of collateral method loan is impaired

when based on current information and events it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according

to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Management of the Bank evaluates the borrowers ability to pay the value of

any collateral and other factors in determining when loan is impaired Management does not consider loan to be impaired

during period of delay in payment if it is expected that the Bank will collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the

contractual interest rate for the period of the delay

Interest payments on impaired loans are applied to the remaining principal balance until the balance is fully recovered Once

principal is recovered cash payments received are recorded as recoveries to the extent of any principal previously charged-off

and then as interest income

Loan origination fees net of certain direct origination costs are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan

yield over the life of the loan Loan origination fees and direct loan origination costs on loans held for sale are deferred and rec

ognized at the time the loan is sold

Allowance for loan losses The allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan losses charged to expense

Loans including impaired loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectibility

of the principal is unlikely The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses

on existing loans that may become uncollectible based on evaluation of the collectibility of certain specific loans and prior loss

experience This evaluation also takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio

overall portfolio quality review of specific problem loans and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers ability

to pay While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation future adjustments to the allowance may
be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions

Foreclosed real estate Foreclosed real estate represents properties acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings The

property is held for sale and is recorded at the lower of the recorded amount of the loan or fair value of the property less esti

mated costs of disposal Any write-down to fair value at the time of foreclosure is charged to the allowance for loan losses Prop

erty is evaluated regularly to ensure the carrying amount is supported by its current fair value Foreclosed real estate is reported

net of allowance for losses in the consolidated financial statements

Bank premises and equipment Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and computed by

straight-line and declining balance methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from three to thirty-nine

years

Financial instruments In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off balance sheet financial instruments

consisting of commitments to extend credit commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit Such financial instru

ments are recorded in the financial statements when they become payable

Bank-owned life insurance BOLl In order to insure the lives of its key officers the Bank has acquired bank-owned life insur

ance policy BOLl is recorded at its cash surrender value net of surrender charges and/or early termination charges in accor

dance with FASB Technical Bulletin 85-4 The change in cash value is recorded as other income/expense
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Income taxes Provisions for income taxes are based on amounts reported in the statements of income after exclusion of nontax

able income such as interest on state and municipal securities and include deferred taxes on temporary differences in the rec

ognition of income and expense for tax and financial statement purposes Deferred taxes are computed on the liability method

Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance when in the opinion of management it is more likely than not that

some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board In

terpretation No.48 FIN 48 it is the Companys policy to recognize interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions

as components of income taxes and to disclose the recognized interest and penalties if material

Earnings per share Earnings per share are calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding in

accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SEAS No 128 Earnings per Share This Statement establishes

standards for computing and presenting earnings per share and applies to entities with publicly held common stock or potential

common stock The Companys outstanding stock options are the primary cause of the Companys diluted earnings per share

Fair value of financial instruments The following methods and assumptions are used by the Bank in estimating fair values of

financial instruments In cases where quoted market prices of financial instruments are not available fair values are based on

estimates using present value or other valuation techniques Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions

used including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows

In that regard the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and in many

cases could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument Accordingly the aggregate fair value amounts pre

sented are not intended to and do not represent the underlying value of the Bank

Cash and due from banks Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits in banks Due to the short-term nature of these instru

ments their estimated fair values approximate their carrying amounts

Available-for-sale securities Estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices when available Where quoted market

prices are not available quoted market prices of comparable instruments or discounted cash flow methods are used to estimate

lair vaiuc

Loans Fair values for loans are estimated by discounted cash flows using interest rates currently being offered by the Bank for

loans with similarterms and similarcredit quality For loan commitments the Bank utilizes prevailing interest rates being offered

on similar loans to estimate the fair value of the commitment

Deposit liabilities other borrowings and retail agreements Due to the short-term nature of demand and savings accounts and

retail agreements the estimated fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying amounts In addition due to the

short-term nature of borrowings from other institutions the estimated fair value of these instruments approximates their car

rying amounts Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated by discounted cash flows using interest rates currently being

offered by the Bank on certificates of deposits

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are not recorded until such commitments are funded The value of

these commitments is equal to the fees charged to enter into such agreements.The Bank has determined that such instruments

do not have material distinguishable fair value and no fair value has been assigned to these instruments
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Comprehensive income Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue expenses gains and losses be in

cluded in net income although certain changes in assets and liabilities such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale

securities are reported as separate component of the equity section of the statement of financial condition Such items along

with net income are components of comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation The Company uses the fair value recognition provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment to account for compensation

costs under its stock option plans In adopting SFAS No 123 the Company elected to use the modified prospective method

to account for the transition from the previously utilized intrinsic value method to the fair value recognition method Under

the modified prospective method compensation cost is recognized from the adoption date forward for all new stock options

granted and for any outstanding unvested awards as if the fair value method had been applied to those awards as of the date of

grant See Note 10 for additional information regarding the Companys stock-based compensation plans

Recently issued accounting standards

In February 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 155 Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments SFAS 155 amends SFAS 133

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and SFAS 140 Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial As

sets and Extinguishments of Liabilities SFAS 155 permits the fair value re-measurement for any hybrid financial instrument that

contains an embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation Furthermore it clarifies which interest-only strips

and principal-only strips are not subject to SFAS 133 requirements It also establishes requirement to evaluate interests in Se

curitized financial assets to identify interest in freestanding derivatives and clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form

of subordination are not embedded derivatives In addition it eliminates the prohibition on qualifying special purpose entity

from holding derivative financial instrument pertaining to beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instru

ment The Company adopted SFAS 155 in 2007 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on the

Companys financial condition results of operations or liquidity

In June 2006 the FASR icciierl FASR Intprnrpttirn Armuntina far uncertainty in Inrame Ta-ec an internretatinn afFASR-.. ---
Statement 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recoqnized in companys financial

statements in accordance with SFAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes.This Interpretation prescribes recognition threshold

and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be

taken in tax return.The Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition classification interest and penalties account

ing in interim periods disclosure and transition The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 12007 as required The adoption of

this standard did not have material impact on the Companys financial condition results of operations or liquidity

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value in accordance with U.S GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS 157 clarifies

that the exchange price is the price in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell an asset or transfer liability at

the measurement date SFAS 157 emphasizes that fair value is market-based measurement and not an entity-specific measure

ment It also establishes fair value hierarchy used in fair value measurements and expands the required disclosures of assets

and liabilities measured at fair value The Company adopted SFAS 157 on January 12008 as required.The adoption of this stan

dard did not have material impact on the Companys financial condition results of operations or liquidity
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuedj

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Summary of significant accounting policies continued

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities SEAS 159 permits

entities to choose to measure financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be

measured at fair value The decision to elect the fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument is irrevocable and

is applied to the entire instrument and not to only specified risks specific cash flows or portions of that instrument An entity is

restricted in choosing the dates to elect the fair value option for an eligible item The Company adopted SEAS 159 on January

2008 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on the Companys financial condition results of

operations or liquidity

In September 2006 the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force in EITF 06-4 Accounting for De

erred Compensation and Postretirement BenefitAspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements EITF 06-4 clarifies

that an endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangement is one that provides post-retirement life insurance benefit to an

employee EITF 06-4 requires that for such an arrangement an employer must recognize liability for the future benefits in ac

cordance with either FASB Statement No 106 or APB 12 as appropriate EITF 06-4 also requires that recognition of the effects of

its adoption be either by change in accounting principle recorded as cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings

as of the beginning of the year of adoption or change in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior

periods The Company adopted EITF 06-4 on January 2008 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material

impact on the Companys financial condition results of operations or liquidity

In September 2006 the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force in EITF 06-5 Accounting for Pur

chases of Life Insurance Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No 85-4 With

the issue of EITF 06-5 consensus was reached on the following issues in the reporting of the realizable asset in the statement

of financial condition that policyholder should consider any additional amounts included in the contractual terms of the

policy in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract that policyholder should determine

the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract assuming the surrender of an individual-life by individual-life

policy or certificate by certificate in group policy and that policyholder should not discount the cash surrender value

component of the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract when contractual restrictions on the ability to

surrender policy exist as long as the policyholder continues to participate in the changes in the cash surrender value as it had

rlr.nn ninny 4-n hn ci rynnrlny rn nc-f 11T1 flA_ç rn lime 4-I.t.t ynrr.nnit-inn cii t-hn nffnrt-e iif itc t.rlnntinn ha nithar rkt.nnci in
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accounting principle recorded as cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the year of adop

tion or change in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior periods The Company adopted EITF

06-5 in 2007 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on the Companys financial condition

results of operations or liquidity

In November 2007 the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 109 SAB 109 SAB 109

expresses
the views of the SEC regarding written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings under

generally accepted accounting principles and supersedes SAB 105 SAB 109 states that consistent with SFAS 156 Accounting

for Servicing of Financial Assets and SFAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities the expected

net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all written loan

commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings Furthermore SAB 109 retains the view issued in SAB 105

that internally-developed intangible assets should not be recorded as part of the fair value of derivative loan commitment and

actually broadens its application to all written loan commitments accounted for at fair value through earnings The Company

adopted SAB 109 on January 12008 as required.The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on the Companys

financial condition results of operations or liquidity

36 2008 ANNUAL REPORT



GEQGk ARQJNA

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Summary of significant accounting policies continued

In February 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-3 4ccounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing Transac

tions ESP 140-3 addresses the issue of whether or not these transactions should be viewed as two separate transactions or as

onelinked transaction FSP 140-3 includes arebuttable presumptionthat presumes linkage of the two transactions unless

the presumption can be overcome by meeting certain criteria ESP 140-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November

15 2008 and will apply only to original transfers made after that date early adoption will not be allowed The Company will be

required to adopt this statement on January 2009 Management does not expect the adoption of this statement to have

material impact on the Companys financial condition results of operations or liquidity

In March 2008 the FASB issued SEAS 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiesan amendment of FASB

Statement No 133 SEAS 161 requires entities that utilize derivative instruments to provide qualitative disclosures about their

objectives and strategies for using such instruments as well as any details of credit-risk-related contingent features contained

within derivatives SEAS 161 also requires entities to disclose additional information about the amounts and location of deriva

tives located within the financial statements how the provisions of SEAS 133 has been applied and the impact that hedges have

on an entitys financial position financial performance and cash flows SEAS 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods

beginning after November 152008 with early application encouraged.The Company will be required to adopt this standard on

January 2009 Management does not expect the adoption of SEAS 161 to have material impact on the Companys financial

condition results of operations or liquidity

In May2008the EASB issued SEAS 162 The Hierarchyof GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciples.SEAS 162 identifiesthesources

of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements SEAS 162

is effective November 15 2008 60 days following the SECs September 16 2008 approval of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411 The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with GenerallyAcceptedAccounting

Principles The Company adopted SEAS 162 in 2008 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on

the Companys financial condition results of operations or liquidity

In September 2008 the FASB issued FSP 133-1 and FIN 45-4 Disclosures about Credit Derivatives and Certain Guarantees An

Amendment of E4SB Statement No 133 FASB Interpretation No 45 and Clarification of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No
161 FSP 133-1 and FIN 45-4 ESP 133-1 and FIN 45-4 amends and enhances disclosure requirements for sellers of credit deriva

tives and financial guarantees ESP 133-1 and FIN 45-4 also clarifies that the disclosure requirements of SEAS 161 are effective for

quarterly periods beginning after November 15 2008 and fiscal years that include those periods ESP 133-1 and EIN 45-4 was

effective for reporting periods annual or interim ending after November 15 2008 The Company adopted this statement as of

December 31 2008 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on the Companys financial condi

tion results of operations or liquidity

In October 2008 the EASB issued FSP SEAS No 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of FinancialAsset When The Market for That

Asset Is Not Active ESP 157-3 to clarify the application of the provisions of SFAS 157 in an inactive market and provides an ex

ample to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that financial asset

is not active FSP 157-3 was effective upon issuance including prior periods for which financial statements had not been issued

Revisions resulting from change in the valuation technique or its application shall be accounted for as change in accounting

estimate SEAS 154 Accounting Changes and ErrorCorrections The disclosure provisions of SEAS 154 for change in accounting

estimate are not required for revisions resulting from change in valuation technique or its application The Company adopted

this standard on October 12008 as required The adoption of this standard did not have material impact on the Companys
financial condition results of operations or liquidity
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 2- Cash and due from banks

Cash on hand cash items in the process of collection and amounts due from correspondent banks and the Federal Reserve Bank

are included in Cash and due from banks As of December 31 2008 interest-bearing cash on deposit with correspondent banks

totaled $1.3 million and funds required to be on reserve with the Federal Reserve totaled $960000

Note Investment securities

The amortized cost and fair value amounts of securities owned as of December 31 2008 and 2007 are shown below

2008

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available-for-sale securities

U.S Government and agency 26690 640 27330

Mortgage-backed 19899 423 132 20190

Corporateobligations 194 44 150

State and municipal 10482 30 588 9924

Total 57265 1093 764 57594

2007

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

AviIhl-fnr-cale cectJritiEs

U.S.Governmentandagency 31671 485 32148

Mortgage-backed 19431 48 147 19332

Corporate obligations 194 11 183

State and municipal 7271 41 69 7243

Total 58567 574 235 58906

The amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 312008 by contractual maturity are as follows Actual maturities may

differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-backed securities as the mortgages underlying the securities may be called or pre

paid without penalty therefore these securities are not included in the maturity categories in the following maturity summary
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Less than one year

One to five
years

Five to ten years

Over ten years

Mortgage-backed securities

Total

December 31 2008 and 2007

Amortized

Cost

225

835

15430

20876

19899

57265

226

833

15574

20771

20190

57594

Securities with carrying amount of approximately $41.5 million at December 31 2008 and $48.8 million at December 31 2007

were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes

There were no material gross realized gains or gross realized losses on sales of securities during 2008 2007 or 2006

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 aggregated by

investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous loss position follows

2008

Note Investment securities continued

Securities

Available-for-Sale

Fair

Value

in thousands

Less Than Twelve Months

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

Fair

Value

Over Twelve Months

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

Fair

Value

in thousands

O-f-IU iöö /4L

44 150

131 4224 728

531 10664 233 1620

2007

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

Securities available-for-sale

agency

.JLa cii iu II lUl IILIpcll lUU
Corporate obligations

Mortgage-backed

Total

in thousands

Securities available-for-sale

agency 1245 4867
Stateand municipal 21 1546 48 1406
Corporate obligations 11 183

Mortgage-backed 2254 143 12081

Total 36 5228 199 18354

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

Fair

Value

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

Fair

Value
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note Investment securities continued

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on periodic basis and more frequently when economic

or market conditions warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair

value has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuers and the intent and ability of the

Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value

At December31 2008 the
gross

unrealized losses are primarily the result of changes in market interest rates and not related to the

credit quality of the underlying issuer All of the securities are U.S agency debt securities mortgage-backed securities municipal

securities and corporate securities As the Bank has the ability to hold the securities for the foreseeable future no declines are

deemed to be other than temporary

Included in Other Assets is an investment of approximately $709000 net of amortization in real estate rehabilitation project

located in Georgia that will provide the Bank with state tax credits for approximately the next years

Note 4- Loans

The composition of loans for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows

2008 2007

Sin thousands

Commercialandindustrial 31173 29582

Real estate construction 105032 89580

Real estate residential 65958 53557

Real estate commercial 125194 139111

Consumer 9092 10487

336449 322317

Deferred loan fees 156 116

336293 322201

Allowance for loan losses 4284 5059
Loansnet 332009 317142

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows

2008 2007 2006

Sin thousands

Balanceatbeginningoftheyear 5059 4386 3756

Provision charged to operations 1456 909 898

Recoveries 33 52 31

Loans charged off 2264 288 299

Balanceatendoftheyear 4284 5059 4386
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 4- Loans continued

Loans classified as non-accrual for which the accrual of interest had been discontinued or reduced amounted to approximately

$5061000 and $11558000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The allowance for loan losses specifically reserved for

these non-accrual loans totaled approximately $388000 and $1266000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively There was

approximately $2697000 in non-accrual loans that did not require specific reserve in the allowance as of December 31 2008

and no non-accrual loans that did not require specific reserve in the allowance as of December 31 2007 Interest income on non-

accrual loans which would have been reported if on an accrual basis amounted to approximately $3387000 and $1704000 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

At December 31 2008 impaired loans totaled approximately $19539000 as compared to $15431000 identified as such at De
cember 31 2007 The allowance for loan losses specifically reserved for these impaired loans totaled approximately $831000 and

$2127000 as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively There were approximately $13520000 in impaired

loans that did not require specific reserve in the allowance for loan losses as of December 31 2008 and no impaired loans that

did not require specific reserve in the allowance as of December 31 2007 The average recorded investment in impaired loans

was approximately $20603000 and $14833000 at December31 2008 and December31 2007 respectively Interest income rec

ognized on loans while they were impaired on an accrual basis totaled approximately $961000 $1008000 and $220000 as of

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Interest income recognized on loans while they were impaired on cash basis

totaled approximately $923000 $882000 and $166000 as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

At December31 2008 executive officers and directors and companies in which they have beneficial ownership were indebted

to the Bank in the aggregate amount of approximately $14086000 The interest rates on these loans were substantially the same

as rates prevailing at the time of the transactions and repayment terms are customary for the type of loan involved Following is

summary of transactions for the years ending December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

in thousands

Balance at beginning of the year 4061 4508
Advances 10921 1690
Repayments 896 2137

Balance at end of the year 14086 4061

Note 5- Foreclosed real estate

summary of foreclosed real estate for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is as follows

2008 2007

$in thousands

Carrying amount of property 721 483

Less valuation allowance

Balanceatendoftheyear 7217 483

There was no provision charged to income for each of the
years presented
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 6- Bank premises and equipment
Bank premises and equipment consists of the following for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

in thousands

Land and improvements 3844 3836

Building and improvements 6321 6245

Equipment furniture and fixtures 4583 4431

14748 14512

Less accumulated depreciation 4667 4080
Premisesandequipmentnet 10081 10432

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 3120082007 and 2006 was approximately $618000 $647000 and $659000

respectively

Note Deposits

At December 31 2008 the scheduled maturities of time deposit liabilities were as follows in thousands

Oneyearorless 215172

Over one year through three years 24245

Over three years
900

Balanceatendoftheyear 240317

To manage the Banks funding capabilities the Bank may also enter into retail deposit agreements with customers and may obtain

short-term funding from other institutions Retail deposit agreements with customers are generally secured by investment secu

rities owned by the Bank and are established at prevailing market rates Short-term funding from other institutions is generally

overnight or 30-day funding at current market rates Total deposit agreements were approximately $8.6 million and $6.0 million

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Note 8- Federal home loan bank advances

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Bank had credit availability or potential borrowing capacity of 25% of total assets

subject to the Banks financial condition and collateral balances with the FHLB One of the advance products utilized in 2008 was

the Loans Held for Sale LHFS program formerly known as the warehouse line of credit The line is collateralized by the Banks

mortgage loans held for sale Advances under this line are due 90 days from the date of the advance As of December 31 2008 the

Bank did not have balance outstanding under the LHFS program as compared to $1.3 million outstanding balance under the

LHFS program at December 31 2007 The Bank also maintains line of credit with the FHLB which is secured by 1-4 family loans

held in the Banks loan portfolio As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the 1-4 family line of credit balances were $6.0 million and

$5.0 million respectively.The weighted average interest rates on the outstanding balances of both lines were 2.71% and 4.03% as

of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively During 2007 long-term convertible advance was established as new additional

line of credit At December 31 2008 the outstanding balance on this advance was $10.0 million with weighted average inter

est rate of 3.83% This advance matures December 2012 and is callable until December 2010 An additional but similar long-term

convertible advance was established during 2008 At December 312008 the outstanding balance on this new advance was $15.0

million with weighted average interest rate of 3.33% This advance matures May2013 and is callable until May2010
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 9- Line of credit

The Company has line of credit with financial institution which provided the Company the ability to draw principal sum of

$3.0 million in periodic advances through December 30 2003 with maturity date of January 12014 The original principal bal

ance of $900000 under this line of credit is payable in nine annual installments of$1 00000 that began on January 12005 with

the entire outstanding balance due and payable on January 2014 Interest is calculated annually using rate of prime minus

0.50% 2.75% and 6.75% at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The line of credit is secured through the pledge of all is

sued and outstanding shares of the Banks capital stock The outstanding principal balance at December 31 2008 and 2007 was

$500000 and $600000 respectively The arrangement requires the Company and Bank to comply with financial covenants related

to capital levels the allowance for loan losses dividend payments and other financial matters At December 31 2008 the Com

pany and the Bank were in compliance with all but one of these covenants.The Companys ratio of classified assets toTier capital

was slightly higher than the required ratio but waiver of the covenant requirement for December 31 2008 was granted by the

financial institution At December 31 2007 the Company and the Bank were in compliance with all covenants Future noncompli
ance with this covenant would not have material impact on the Companys ability to meet future obligations

Note 10- Employee benefit plan

The Bank has 401k salary-deferred plan covering substantially all employees At the discretion of the Banks Board of Directors

the Bank may match percentage of the annual amounts deferred by employees Matching amounts are funded by the Bank as

accrued.Total deferred and matching amounts are limited to amounts that can be deducted for Federal income tax purposes The

Banks matching contributions were approximately $161000 $170000 and $168000 respectively for each of the years in the

three year period ended December 31 2008

Note 11 Shareholders equity and regulatory requirements

The primary source of funds available to the Company is the payment of dividends by its subsidiary bank Banking regulations

limit the amount of dividends that may be paid by the Bank without prior approval of regulatory agencies

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by state and Federal banking agencies Failure to

meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators

that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Banks financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and

the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative

measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices

The Banks capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk

weightings and other factors Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and

ratios set forth in the table below of total and Tier capital as defined in the regulations to risk-weighted assets as defined and

of Tier capital as defined to average assets as defined Management believes that as of December 31 2008 the Bank met all

capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject

As of December 31 2008 the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as well-capitalized

under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action To be categorized as well-capitalized the Bank must maintain mini

mum total risk-based Tier risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the table below There are no conditions or events

since that notification that management believes have changed the Banks category
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 11 Shareholders equity and regulatory requirements continued

The Banks actual capital amounts in thousands and ratios as of December 31 2008 and 2007 are also presented in the follow

ing tables

Required For Required To Be Well-Capitalized

Actual Capital Adequacy Under Prompt Corrective

Purposes Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2008

Total capital to risk weighted assets

Bank 43075 10.89% 31657 8.0% 39571 10.0%

Consolidated 43158 10.91% 31657 8.0% 39571 10.0%

Tier capital to risk weighted assets

Bank 38791 9.80% 15828 4.0% 23742 6.0%

Consolidated 38875 9.82% 15828 4.0% 23742 6.0%

Tier leverage to average assets

Bank 38791 8.58% 18094 4.0% 22617 5.0%

Consolidated 38875 8.59% 18094 4.0% 22618 5.0%

As of December 31 2007

Total capital to risk weighted assets

Bank 40867 10.74% 30454 8.0% 38067 10.0%

Consolidated 40814 10.72% 30454 8.0% 38067 10.0%

Tier capital to risk weighted assets

Bank 35808 9.41% 15227 4.0% 22840 6.0%

Consolidated 35755 9.39% 15227 4.0% 22840 6.0%

Tier leverage to average assets

Bank 35808 8.51% 16833 4.0% 21042 5.0%

Consolidated 35755 8.18% 16833 4.0% 21862 5.0%

During 1997 the Company adopted the 1997 Stock Option Plan the 1997 Plan for eligible directors officers and key employees

of the Company and the Bank Options are granted to purchase common shares at prices not less than the fair market value of the

stock at the date of grant The maximum number of shares that may be reserved and made available-for-sale under the 1997 Plan

is 345000 shares as adjusted for the Companys stock splits and stock dividends

During early 2005 the Company adopted the 2004 Incentive Plan the2004 Plan for eligible directors officers and key employ

ees of the Company and the Bank Options are granted to purchase common shares at prices not less than the fair market value of

the stock at the date of grant The maximum number of shares that may be reserved and made available-for-sale under the 2004

Plan is 330125 shares as adjusted for the Companys stock split in 2005

The Plans provide for the grant of both incentive and nonqualified stock options to purchase the Companys common stock The

Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company establishes to whom options shall be granted and determines

exercise prices vesting requirements and the number of shares covered by each option subject to the approval of the Companys

Board of Directors
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 11 Shareholders equity and regulatory requirements continued

On January 2006 the Company adopted SEAS 123R Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation SFAS 123R SFAS 123R

requires all share-based payment to employees including grants of employee stock options to be recognized as expense in the

statement of earnings based on their fair values Prior to SEAS 123R only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were re

quired.The amount of compensation is measured at the fair value of the options when granted and this cost is expensed over the

required service period which is normally the vesting period of the options SFAS 123R applies to awards granted or modified

after January 2006 or any unvested awards outstanding at December 31 2005 The effect of the adoption of the new account

ing principle on results of operations depends on the level of option grants the vesting period for those grants and the fair value

of the options granted at such date Existing options that vested after the adoption date resulted in additional compensation

expense of approximately $134000 in 2008 The Company utilized the disclosure requirements permitted by SEAS 123Account-

ing for Stock-Based Compensation SEAS 123 for transactions entered into during 1996 and thereafter Eor the periods prior to

January 2006 the Company elected to remain with the former method of accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion

25 APB 25

As of December 31 2008 the Company has two share-based compensation plans which are described above and has issued

shares of common stock to non-employee directors as compensation for services rendered The Company recorded $1 65000

$188000 and $1 72000 in stock compensation expense related to the issuance of these shares for the years ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The expense recognized for these shares was equal to the fair value of the shares on the date

of grant

The fair value for these options was estimated on the date of
grant using lattice-based option valuation model that used the

following range of assumptions for each of the years presented

2008 2007 2006

Expected volatility 37.4% 37.6% 40.8% 40.8% 41.3% 42.0%

Weighted-average volatility 37.53% 40.75% 41.69%

Expected dividends 0% 0% 0%
Expected term in years 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 6.0 7.0

fO/. 7DflL A/
-- _.J /0 t.I /0 t.J.70

In addition the model assumed that each option was exercised in the initial year of vesting

For purposes of proforma disclosures the estimated fair value of options is amortized to expense over the options vesting pe
riod Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility

Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate In managements opinion the model

does not necessarily provide reliable single measure of the fair value of options

Vesting requirements are determined by the Board of Directors at the time options are granted and generally provide for vesting

over seven-year period The Plans provide that vesting periods may not exceed ten years
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 11 Shareholders equity and regulatory requirements continued

summary of the Companys stock option activity under the Plans as of December31 2008 and changes and related information

for the year then ended is presented below

Options

Outstanding at January 2008

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited or expired

Outstanding at December 31 2008

Exercisable at December 31 2008

Wtd Avg
Shares

Wtd Avg
Exercise Price

Remaining
Aggregate

Contractual Term
Intrinsic Value

324441

23934

61500

286875 9.18 4.43 810279

237294 $8.35 3.70 810279

At December 31 2008 options both outstanding and exercisable have exercise prices that range from $3.33 per
share to $20.41

per share The weighted-average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at December31 2008 was approximately 4.43

years or 53 months

The estimated weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted and the total intrinsic value of options exercised during

the years ended December 31 20082007 and 2006 are as follows

Weighted-average grant date fair value

Total intrinsic value of options exercised

2007 2006

summary of the status of the Companys nonvested shares as of December 31 2008 and changes during the year then ended

is presented below

Shares

40455

23934

14808

7.67

4.86

7.51

As of December 312008 there was $226808 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the Companys nonvested shares

granted under the Plans This cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 2.33 years The total fair value of

shares vested during the years ended December 31 20082007 and 2006 was $111205 $203932 and $269584 respectively

7.99

10.85

3.56

2008

4.86 7.30 7.13

396161 60265 86624

Non-vested Shares

Non-vested at January 2008

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2008

Wtd Avg
Grant-Date

Fair Value

49581 6.36
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 11 Shareholders equity and regulatory requirements continued

Following is reconciliation of the income amounts and common stock amounts utilized in computing the Companys earnings

per share for each of the following years ended December 31

2008

Basic EPS

Income available to common stockholders

Effect of stock options outstanding

Diluted EPS

Income available to common stockholders

Basic EPS

Income available to common stockholders

Effect of stock options outstanding

Diluted EPS

Income available to common stockholders

Basic EPS

Income available to common stockholders

Effect of stock options outstanding

Diluted EPS

Income available to common stockholders

Income Shares

Numerator Denominator Per Share

in thousands except per share

2800 3426860 0.82

76996 0.02

2800 3503856 0.80

2007

Income Shares

Numerator Denominator Per Share

Sin thousands except per share

2901 3393224 0.85

115382 0.02

2901 3508606 0.83

nfl

Income Shares

Numerator Denominator Per Share

Sin thousands except per share

2897 3370277 0.86

119287 0.03

2897 3489564 0.83
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December 31 2008 and 2007

The total income taxes in the statements of income for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are as follows

in thousands

2007 2006

The Banks provision for income taxes differs from the amounts computed by applying the Federal and state income tax statutory

rates to income before income taxes reconciliation of the differences is as follows

2007 2006

Federal statutory rates

State taxes net of federal benefit

Tax-exempt income

Nondeductible interest

State tax credits

Bank-owned life insurance

Other

Total

34.0% 34.0% 34.0%

2.7 4.3 4.0

2.1 1.2 2.0

0.4 0.3 0.5

2.1 3.0 4.7

2.6 0.6

0.6 2.0 1.7

30.9% 35.8% 33.5%

The primary components of deferred income taxes at December 31 2008 and 2007 are as follows

LJIeiIeu IdA dSI
Allowance for loan losses

Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale

Amortization of GA low-income housing tax credits

Executive compensation plans

Valuation allowance on GA low-income housing tax credits

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale

Depreciation

Deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax assets

1236

310

996

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on sufficient future taxable income during the period that deductible temporary

differences are expected to be available to reduce taxable income

Note 12 Income taxes

Current tax provision

Deferred tax expense/benefit

Total income tax expense

2008

929 1853 1632

323 234 172

1252 1619 1460

2008

2008 2007

Sin thousands

1641

122 46

70

122
1306

84
1605

117 121

193 169

290

1315
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 13 Commitments and contingencies

In the ordinary course of business the Bank may enter into off-balance-sheet financial instruments that are not reflected in the

financial statements These instruments include commitmentsto extend credit and standby letters of credit Such financial instru

ments are recorded in the financial statements when funds are disbursed or the instruments become payable

The Bank uses the same credit policies for these off-balance-sheet financial instruments as it does for other instruments that are

recorded in the financial statements

Following is an analysis of significant off-balance-sheet financial instruments for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Commitments to extend credit

Standby letters of credit

Total

in thousands

56426 40492

5102 1912

61528 42404

Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee Since many
of the commitment amounts expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent

future cash requirements In managing the Banks credit and market risk exposure the Bank may participate these commitments

with other institutions when funded The credit risk involved in issuing these financial instruments is essentially the same as that

involved in extending loans to customers The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension

of credit is based on managements credit evaluation of the customer Collateral held varies but may include real estate and im

provements marketable securities accounts receivable inventory equipment and personal property

The Company as part of its retail mortgage loan production activities routinely enters into short-term commitments to originate

loans Most of the loans will be sold to third parties upon closing For those loans the Company enters into best efforts individual

forward sales commitments at the same time the commitments to originate are finalized While the forward sales commitments

function as an economic offset and effectively eliminate the Companys financial risk of rate changes during the rate lock period

both the commitment to originate mortgage loans that will be sold and the commitment to sell the mortgage loans are deriva

tives thefair values of which are essentially equal and offsetting.The fairvalues are calculated based on changes in market interest

rates after the commitment date The notional amounts of these mortgage loan origination commitments and the related forward

sales commitments were approximately $34.8 million each at December 31 2008 compared to approximately $40.0 million each

at December 31 2007 The net unrealized gains/losses of the origination and sales commitments did not have material effect on

the consolidated financial statements of the Company at December 31 2008 or 2007

The Company has executed individual forward sales commitments related to retail mortgage loans which are classified as loans

held for sale The forward sales commitments on retail mortgage loans function as an economic offset and mitigate the Companys
market risk on these loans.The notional value of the forward sales commitments on retail mortgage loans at December 31 2008 was

approximately $35.8 million compared to approximately $43.3 million at December 31 2007 The fair value of the sales commitments

on retail mortgage loans resulted in no material gains or losses to the Company at December 31 2008 or December 31 2007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 13 Commitments and contingencies continued

The nature of the business of the Bank is such that it ordinarily results in certain amount of litigation In the opinion of man

agement at December 31 2008 there were no present litigation matters in which the anticipated outcome will have material

adverse effect on the financial statements During June 2008 previously pending lawsuit initiated by the Bank against bor

rower in default was settled in favor of the Bank and approximately $430000 was received on August 82008 The settlement was

recorded in the third quarter of 2008 as follows

Recovered legal fees 28000

Interest 36000

Non-interest income 366000

Total 430000

The Bank is obligated under operating leases for certain office premises and equipment Future minimum rental commitments for

all non-cancelable operating leases total approximately $291000 in 2009 $287000 in 2010 $279000 in 2011 $201000 in 2012

and $143000 in 2013 and $0 thereafter Rental expense of office premises and equipment were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Office premises rental expense

Equipment rental expense

Note 14- Supplemental consolidated cash flow information

Income taxes paid

Interest paid

Interest received

Real estate acquired by foreclosure non-cash

Unrealized gain/loss on securities non-cash

Note 15 Fair value of financial instruments

in thousands

285 276 272

13 27 28

2008 2007 2006

1397 1396

14147 10295

26552 25351

8660 822

11 424

For assets and liabilities recorded at fair value it is the Companys policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize

the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements in accordance with the fair value hierarchy in SEAS No

157.This standard also requires fair value measurements to be separately disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements for assets and liabilities where there exists limited or no observable market data and therefore are based

primarily upon estimates are often calculated based on the economic and competitive environment the characteristics of the

asset or liability and other factors.Therefore the results cannot be determined with precision and may not be realized in an actual

sale or immediate settlement of the asset or liability Additionally there may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation technique

and changes in the underlying assumptions used including discount rates and estimates of future cash flows could significantly

affect the results of current or future values

Sin thousands

2354

15598

28643

1136

755
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GERJNA
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continuedj

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 15- Fair value of financial instruments continued

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine

fair value disclosures Securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Additionally from time to time

the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on nonrecurring basis such as loans held for sale loans held

for investment and certain other assets These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or

market accounting or write-downs of individual assets

The estimated fair values of the Banks financial instruments for those instruments for which the Banks management believes

estimated fair value does not by nature approximate the instruments carrying amount are as follows at December 31 2008 and

2007 in millions

2008 2007

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Loans and loans held for

sale net of allowance 360.4 392.3 356.7 442.5

Time deposits 240.3 245.1 239.3 234.3

Estimated fair value information of investment securities is presented in Note of the financial statements

Under SEAS No 157 the Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels based on the markets in which the assets

and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value These levels are as follows

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets such as the New York Stock Exchange The Com
pany has no Level assets or liabilities at December 31 2008

Level 2Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources via independent providers for market transactions involv

ing similarassets or liabilities The Companys principal market for these securities is the secondary institutional markets and valu

ations are based on observable market data in those markets At December 31 2008 Level securities include U.S Government

agency obiigations state and municipal bonds corporate debt securities mortgage-backed securities and FHLB stock

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies including option pricing models

discounted cash flow models and similar techniques and not based on market exchange dealer or broker traded transactions

Level valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabili

ties The Company has no Level assets or liabilities at December 31 2008

Eollowing is description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale

Investment securities available-for-sale including FHLB stock are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Eair value measure
ment is based upon quoted prices if available If quoted prices are not available fair values are measured using independent

pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as present value of future cash flows adjusted for the securities

credit rating prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions At December 31 2008 the Company
classified $59.8 million of investment securities available-for-sale including EHLB stock subject to recurring fair value adjustments

as Level
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 15 Fair value of financial instruments continued

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value.The fair value of loans held for sale is based on what secondary

markets are currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics As such the Company classifies loans subjected to nonre

curring fair value adjustments as Level There were no fair value adjustments related to the $28.4 million of loans held for sale at

December 31 2008

Loans

The Company does not record loans at fair value on recurring basis However from time to time loan is considered impaired

and an allowance for loan losses is established Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be

made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired Once an individual loan is identi

fied as impaired management measures the impairment in accordance with SEAS No 114 Accounting by Creditors for Impair

ment of LoanThe fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods including collateral value market

value of similar debt enterprise value liquidation value and discounted cash flows.Those impaired loans not requiring an allow

ance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the recorded investments in such

loans At December 31 2008 substantially all of the total impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the collateral

In accordance with SFAS No 157 impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral require

classification in the fair value hierarchy When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or current

appraised value the Company records the impaired loans as nonrecurring Level When an appraised value is not available or

management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable

market price the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level Impaired loans classified as Level totaled $6.1

million at December 31 2008 and had specific loan loss allowances aggregating $0.8 million

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets Subsequently foreclosed assets are

carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value Fair value is based upon independent market prices appraised values of the

collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable

market price or current appraised value the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level When an appraised

value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and

there is no observable market price the Company records the foreclosed assets as nonrecurring Level 3.There were no fair value

adjustments related to foreclosed real estate of $7.2 million at December 312008

Below is table that presents information about certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis

Fair Value Measurements at December 312008 using

in thousands

Total Carrying Assets Quoted Prices Significant Significant

Amount in the Liabilities in Active Other Other

Consolidated Measured Markets for Observable Unobservable

BalanceSheet atFairValue IdenticalAssets Inputs Inputs

Description
12/31/2008 12/31/2008 Level Level Level

Available-for-sale securities

including FHLB stock 59795 59795 59795
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 16- Bank-owned life insurance BOLl

In September 2007 an $8.0 million bank-owned life insurance policy BOLl was acquired in order to insure the key officers of the

Bank Per FASB Technical Bulletin 85-4 this policy is classified as miscellaneous asset at its cash surrender value net of surrender

charges and/or early termination charges As of December 31 2008 the BOLl cash surrender value was $8401691 resulting in

other income for 2008 of $315832 and an annualized net yield of 3.84%

Note 17 Other expenses

Other non-interest expenses for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Data processing 904 906 759

Legal and accounting 540 475 367

Printing and supplies 314 309 319

Advertising 277 309 303

Businessdevelopment 167 159 151

Telephone 171 142 174

Outsideservices 381 415 458

Courier and postage 201 229 263

Software license fees 190 237 178

FDIC assessment 320 241 39

City and county taxes 263 241 233

Other 1513 1499 1399

Total 5241 5162 4643

Note 18- Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income and related tax effects for each of the years ended December 31 20082007 and

7flflS frsIInsAc in thrurrk\

Unrealized holding gains/losses on 2008 2007 2006

available-for-sale securities 11 775 424

Tax effect 279 153
Net unrealized holding gains/losses 496 271
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Note 19 Quarterly Financial Data Linaudited

December 31 2008 and 2007

The following table represents summarized data for each of the quarters in 2008 and 2007

2008

Selected Quarterly Data

in thousands except per share data

2007

4Q 3Q 2Q 1Q 4Q 3Q 2Q 1Q

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after

provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Securities gain loss

Non-interest expenses

Income before income tax expense

Income tax expense

Net income

Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

$6123 $6445 $6700 $7103 $7056 $7569 7382 7012

2847 2987 3299 3905 4019 4060 3880 3747

3276 3458 3401 3198 3037 3509 3502 3265

730 518 29 237 436 103 102 268

2546 2940 3430 2961 2601 3406 3400 2997

2169 2841 2352 2432 2117 2584 2712 2519

37 2069

4471

313

97

216

0.06

0.06

4429 4539 4306 4181 4584 4650 4401

1352 1280 1107 537 1406 1462 1115

386 414 355 198 510 527 384

$966 $866 $752 $339 $896 $935 $731

$0.29 $0.25 $0.22 $0.10 $0.26 $0.28 $0.22

0.28 0.25 0.21 0.10 0.25 0.27 0.21
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 20- Condensed financial information on Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc parent company only

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31 2008 and 2007
in thousands

Assets

Cash
616

Investment in subsidiary 38999
Other assets

64
Deferred tax benefit

91
Total assets

39770 36491

Liabilities

Note payable

Other Liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

Income dividends from subsidiary

Expenses

Director compensation

Other

Total expenses

Loss before income tax benefits and equity in

undistributed
earnings of

subsidiary
Income tax benefits

Loss before equity in undistributed earnings of

subsidiary

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary
___________ ___________ __________Net income

2008 2007

434

36024

33

500

186

686

39084

600

80
520

35971

Condensed Statement of Income
Years Ended December 31 20082007 and 2006

in thousands

39770 36491

LUUO

30 53 48

239 344 282

269 397 330

269 397 330
86 143 187

183 254 143
2983 3155 3040

2800 2901 2897
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

December 31 2008 and 2007

Note 20-Condensed financial information on Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc parent company only continued

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 20082007 and 2006

in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 2800 2901 2897
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Stock-based compensation expense 134 226 295

Stockcompensation 164 189 172

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 2983 31 55 3040
Net change in other assets and liabilities 146 228 252

Total adjustments 2539 2512 2825

Net cash provided by operating activities 261 389 72

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments on borrowed funds 100 100 100
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and

exercise of stock options 21 33 59

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 79 67 41

Netchangeincash 182 322 31

Cashatbeginningoftheyear 434 112 81

Cashatendoftheyear 616 434 112
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